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INDEPENPENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Report aon the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Finance & Investments
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Iind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
cpinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 48 to the Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainty caused
by Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic with respect to the Company's estimates of impairment of
loans to customers and that such estimates may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financlal statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

e, Ind AS financlal statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
;-"f&_’i&ﬁ?ﬁfb’g%dit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
&

™ ”'7_ terial misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
‘.'fﬂ \procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit epinion on the
7y AR ?mpanying ind AS financial statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

financial statements)

{a) Impalrment of financial assets as at balance sheet date (as described in note 2.8, 8 & 8,A of Ind AS

ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide feor
impairment of its loan receivables (designated at
amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) using the expected credit
loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation
of probability-weighted loss on financial
instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company's loans and
advances.

In the process, & significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

» Staging of loans (L.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk" (“SICR")
and ‘default’ categories);

« Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity
by using appropriate statistical techniques;

+ Estimation of behavioral life;

» Petermining macro-economic factors
impacting credit quality of receivables;

s Estimation of losses for loan product with no/
minimal historical defaults.

Additional considerations on account of COVID-
19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular
dated March 27, 2020 (“RBI circular™) allowing
lending institutions to offer moratorium to
barrowers on payment of instalments falling due
between March i, 2020 and May 31, 2020, the
Company has extended moratorium to its
borrowers in accordance with its Board approved
policy as described in Note 48.

In management's view and considering the
guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, providing moratorium to
borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI
directives, by itself is not considered to result in
a SICR for such borrowers. Given the unigue
nature and scale of the economic impact of this
pandemic, and its timing being close to the year-
end, the management overlay is based on various
uncertain variables, which could result in actual
credit loss being different than that being
estimated.

In view of the high degree of management's
judgement invoived In estimation of ECL,
= l~accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, It is a
K8y audit matter.

Our audit procedures focused on the impairment of
financia! assets as at balance sheet date:

Read and assessed the Company's accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets and
their compliance with Ind AS 109 and the
governance framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of india
guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

Read and assessed the Company's policy with
respect to moratorium pursuant to the RB!
circular and tested the implementation of such
policy en a sample basis.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and refated
assumptions and tested the controls around data
extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance
with reguirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample
of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether
any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or
3.

Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as SICR/
default in view of Company's policy on
moratorium.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Assessed the floor/
minimum rates of provisioning applied by the
Company for loan products with inadequate
historical defaults.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (including COVID-19 pandemic).

Audited disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected
credit losses including the specific disciosures
made with regards to the impact of COVID-19 on
ECL estimation.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(b) IT systems and controls

Financial accounting and reporting processes,
especially in the financial services sector, are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and [T
confrols to process significant fransaction
volumes, hence we identified IT systems and
controls over financial reporting as a key audit
matter for the Company.

Automated accounting procedures and |IT
environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over program
development and changes, access to programs
and data and IT operations, are required to be
designed and to operate effectively to ensure
reliable financial reporting.

Qur audit procedures focused on the IT
infrastructure and applications relevant to financial
reporting of the Company:

» We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Company's [T access
controls over the information systems that are
important to financial reporting and various
interfaces, configuration and other identified
application controls.

» We tested IT general controls {logical access,
changes management and aspects of (T
operational controls). This included testing

requests for access to systems were reviewed
and authorized.

+» We tested the Company’'s periodic review of
access rights. We also tested requests of
changes to systems for approval and
autharization.

* In addition to the above, we tested the design
and operating effectiveness of certain
automated controls that were considered as key
internal controls over financial reporting.

s tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls in case deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the
scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion en the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

’,,,;-anmmmg‘mation and, in doing so, consider whether such other infermation is materially inconsistent with the
- ’,_\ff..-ifff_laggﬁ\l statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiafly

0
0

migsitgtq . If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

is,offieh information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
%fj,*lf! i
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility aiso includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irrequiarities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the ind AS financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going cencern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors/Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a quarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [nd AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X() of the Act, we are aiso responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
ference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

}f_g?: clude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
ed on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

uate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
ates and related disclosures made by management.
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or condltions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amoeng other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements fer the financial year ended March
31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unfess
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Sectlon 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the mail confirmatien received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Repert in "Annexure 2" te this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
bl with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) Withrespecttothe other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 44.04 to the Ind AS financial statements;

fii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

or S5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants
CA| Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

LM!\‘\.C-V(’G—'VJ p.

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership Number: 102102 !
UDIN: 20102102AAAAGZ6553

o
v?,'\'})?'—?}..':? {.";?‘-\ Place of Signature: Mumbai
< S Rate: July 03, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regufatory
Requirements’ of our Report of even date

(iXa)

(b)

©)

(i

Gy

(iv)

)

(vid

(viiXa)

(b}

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year in
accordance with reqular programme of verification which, in our opinion, Is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the Information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the name
of the Company.

The verification of securities held for trading have been conducted on the basis of statement of
holding received from the Depository Participants and Clearing Corporation holding statement at
reasonable intervals by the management during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b} and (¢} of the Order are
net applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanatiens given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicabie,

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of
the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. The
provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax and sales tax are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit procedures
performed, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to employees’ state
insurance, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and sales tax are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit procedures
performed, the dues of income-tax, service tax and cess on account of any dispute, are given
helow. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax and sales tax are not applicable to the Company.

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where the
Statue dues (Rs in million) amount relates dispute is pending
Income Tax | Income Tax 26.82 AY 2008-2009 High Court
Act, 1961
Income Tax | Income Tax 37.75% AY 2009-2010 High Court
Act, 1961




SR Barioi& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Name of the Nature of Amount Period o which the Forum where the
Statue dues (Rs in milllon) amount relates dispute is pending

Income Tax | Income Tax 0.14 AY 2009-2010 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 income Tax (Appeals)
Income  Tax | income Tax 11.87 AY 2010-2011 High Court
Act, 1961
Income Tax | Income Tax 29.88 AY 2011-2012 High Court
Act, 1961
Income Tax | Income Tax 90.58 AY 2013-2014 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Inceme Tax (Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax 74.08 AY 2016-2017 Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals)

(viid  In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given by the management and
based upon the audif procedures performed, the Company has not defauited in repayment of loans
or borrowing to a financial institution, banks or dues to debenture holders. The Company does not
have any dues to government.

(G According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of further public offer and term foans.

Further, monies raised by the company by way of public offer of debt instruments were applied for
the purpose for which they were raised, though Idle/surplus funds which were not required for
immediate utilization have been invested in liquid investments payable on demand.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that ne fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{xi} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

[¢.41)] tn our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet and based upon the audit procedures performed, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented
upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, the Company has nct entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
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{(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed, we
report that the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

“YcAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
iw"‘ oy V{-_w‘

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 20102102AAAAGZ6553

Ptace of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 03, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS FINANCE & INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financlal Controfs under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'™)

To the Members of Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Finance & Investments
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibitity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal controi stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibifities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of retiable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perfarm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financlal Contrals Over Financial Reporiing With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial contro! over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements includes those poficies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
ecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, including the possibility of cellusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

tn our epinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batlibol & CO, LL.P

hartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

L\\fa!fd/w K

per Shrawan Jalan
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Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 03, 2020




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Balance Sheet a5 at March 31, 2020

(Curreocy @ Indian rupees in million)

Assels
Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalenis
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{c) Perivative financial instroments
(d) Securitics held for irading
{e) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables
{ii} Other receivables
(f} Loans
(g) Other Ainancial asse1s

Non-financial asscts

(a) Current tax asscts (net)

(b} Delerred 1ax assets (net)

(¢} Praperty, Plant and Equipment
(d) Other Intangible assets

(e} Other non- linancial assets

Total Asscts

Lindilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro entesprises and small enlerprises

(i) total outstanding dues of ¢eedilors ather than micro enterprises and smal

enlerprises
(c) Debl securitics
(d) Borrowings {other Lhan debt securities)
() Subordinated Liabitities
() Oriher Mrancial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities

+ {a) Current tax tinbilitics (net)
{b) Provisions

{¢) Other non-financial liabililies

Equity
(a) Equily share capital
(b) Other equily

Total Linbilities And Equity
The accompanying rotes are an integral parl of the financial stalements

* Refer nowe 45

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R, Ballihwi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
" ICAI Firms Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

\ - >
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oW

per Shrawan Jalon
Partner

Mumbai
July 03, 2020

Note

hoth B

10
12

12
13

14

15
16

8

19
20

22
23

o 49

Asat As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019* April 01, 2018*

1,587.54 1,050.24 152.96
345 53,33 50.02
17.84 1.01 26.44
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Currency : Indian rupees in miliion)

Nole For the year ended For the year ended
Mavrch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019*
Revenue from operations
Interest income 24 1,190.14 1,410.66
Dividend income 25 . 1.44
Fee and cornmisston income 26 15,28 -
Net gain on fair value changes (including Treasury income) 29 278.42 -
Other income 217 1.52 12.49
Total Revenue 1,485.36 1,424.5%
Expenscs
Finance costs 28 984.38 1,204.46
Net loss on fair value changes (including Treasury income) 29 B 58.76
Impairment on financial instruments 30 25.67 -
Employce benefits expense 3l 80.37 35.77
Depreciation and amortisation expense §2 340 6.04
Other expenses 32 125,88 73.88
‘Fotal expenscs 1,221.70 1,378.91
Profil before tax 263.66 45.68
Tax expenses
(1) Current tax 33 13.16 6G9.38
{2) Deferred tax {net} 33 66.21 (36.79)
Profit for the year 184.29 £3.00
Other Comprehensive Income (QCI)
Items that will not be reclassificd to profit or luss
a) Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (OCI) (4.34) 016
b} Income Tax - OCI - that will not be reclassificd 1.09 {0.06)
Total (3.25) 0.10
Fotal Comprchensive Income 181.04 13.19
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 cach) {in Rs.):
Basic 34 53.44 338
Diluted 34 53.44 3.81
The accempanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements fto49
* Refer note 45
As per our report of even date attached.
For S, R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firms Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Edchweiss Finunce & Investments Limited
(Currency : Indian rupees in million}
Staternent of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

A. Equily Share Capital

For the year ended March 31. 2020 Tor the year ¢aded March 31, 2019
Particul Outstanding as on | Issued during the (Outstanding as on| Owstanding as on | Issued during the | Quistanding as on
articulars Aprit £, 2019 year March 31,2020 | April 1, 2018 year March 31,2019
Issucd, Subscribed and Paid up 3435 49.00 83.35 34.335 - 3435
{Equily shazes of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up)
B. Other Equity
. . o . Preemed Capital .
Particutars Capital redemption Sccurtiuzs Statutory Reserve| General Reserve Retaincil Contribution - Total A'ttnbutnhlc
reserve Premium Earnings Equity to equity hotders
Balance as at April 1, 2018+ oM TIL81 921.04 90.26 (24.91) 15.18 1,723.09
Profit for the year - - - B 13.09 - 13.09
Other Comprehensive Income - - . - 010 - 0.10
2.7 T11.81 D21.04 90.26 (11.72) 1518 1,736.28
[ucome tax impact on ESOPS M - - - (37.77) - (37.77)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 9.711 71181 921.04 90.26 (49,49) 15.18 1.608.51
Profit for the year - - - - {84.29 - 184.29
Orther Comprehensive Income B - - - {3.25) - {3.25}
9 71L81 921.04 90,26 131.55 15.18 1,879.55
dﬁ]’ccuﬁﬁes premium on shares issued during . 2,655.80 } B : A 2,655.80
& year
TFransfer w Specinl Reserve - . 40.19 - {40.19) ~ 0.00
‘Transfer 10 Capilal redemption Reserve 106.88 - - {90.26)| {16.62) - {0.00}
{Balance us at March 31, 2020 116.59 3.367.61 961.23 - 74.74 15.18 4,53535
* Refer note 45
The accompanying rotes are an integra par: of these financial statements. lted9
As per our repont of cven date akached,
For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLF For and on behalf of the ltoard of Directors
Chartered Accountanis
ICAL Firms Registration Number; 301 003E/E300)|
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

A Cash low from eperating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Fair value {gain) / toss of financial instruments
Provision far compensated absences
‘Write back of deferred bonus
Expense on employee stock option scheme
Impuairment on financial assets
Profit on sale of of Property, Plant and Equipmeny

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase in Loans
Decrease [ {increase) Trade and other receivables
Decrease in Sccurities held for trading
Decrease f {increase) in Other financial assets
Inerease in Other non- firancial assets
Increase / (decrease) in Trade payables
Decrease in Non-financial liabilities and Provisions
(Decrease) / increase in Other financial liabilites

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities -A
B Cash flow from investing activilies

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment

Net cash used in investing activities - B

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issnance of Share capital (including Securities Premium)
Proceeds from issuance of Debt Securities
{Decrease) / increase in Borrowings other than Debt Sceurities (refer note 2}
Repayment of Subordinmed Linbilities

Nel cash (used in) / generated from financing activities - C

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

Operational cash Mows from interest and dividends
Interest paid
rmemeInferest received
AT T Y :
\/\fjﬂ b ‘:‘\_!})g_w d received

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
263.66 45.68
5.40 6.04
{0.98) 176.21
(0.91) .35
- (105.52)
. 547
25.67 -
(0.01) (0.21)
292.83 128.02
(6,418.57) -
6,259.00 (1,626.19)
13,774.51 844.14
343.57 (266.79)
(27.40) (14.72)
12.61 (5.24)
(6.96) (7.52)
(265.99) 223.39
13,963.90 (724.91)
{50.00) (16.11)
13,913.90 (741.02)
(1.26) (8.00)
0.06 0.83
(1.20) 7.1n
2,704.80 -
3,281.73 -
(19,185.89) 1,645.47
(176,04} -
(13,375.40) 1,645.47
537.30 897.28
1,050.24 152,96
1,587.54 1,050.24
963.56 1,225.32
1,400.00 1,439.67
. 1.44




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Statement of cash flows for the ycar ended Mareh 31, 2020 (continucd)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

Notes:

I Cush Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect methed us set out in Ind AS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) prescribed under
the Compaznics Act (Tndian Accoenting Standards) Rules, 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013,

2 Cash receipts and payments for transuction with group cemgpanies in which the turnover is quick, the amounis are large, and the
maturities are short are presented on net basis in accordunce with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

3 Refer note 37 for change in Babilities arising from financing activities

As per our report of even date attached,

For §. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behall of the Board of Direclors
Chifjered Accountants
Firms Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

1

21

2.2

23

23.1

Corporate information:

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (‘the Company®) a public limited company domiciled and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India is subsidiary of Edelweiss
Securities Limited, The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited, The Company was incorporated on October 27, 1994 and is registered with the Reserve Bank
of India (‘RBI") as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC-ND-SI).

The Company is engaged in the business of advancing of loans against securities and trading and
investing in government securities and fixed income securities.

Basis of preparation:

The financial staternents of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as
amended from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financiaf instruments held for trading,
which have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)
and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division 111 of the
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is
presented in Note 38,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties aiso intend to settle on a
net basis in all of the following circumstances:

*  The normal course of business
*  The event of default
*  The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the
above criteria and not just in the event of default.

Recognition of interest income and dividend income
Effective interest rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCL The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrament,

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset, Hence,
it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other
characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

232

233
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24.1

242

243

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in
the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income;

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR (o the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3", the Company
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis

Dividend income:

The Company recognised Dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments:

Pate of recognition:

Financial Assets and financial liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, ie. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or oss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain / oss on fair
value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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251

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss
account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The
Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

Financial assets and liabilities:
Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated eredit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
methad of any difference between that initizl amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased primarily for
short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking,
Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes,




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
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2.5.5

2.5.6

2.5.7

Investment in equity instruments;

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless
the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be
measured at FVOCL, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instraments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees,
and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and market risk.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss,

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at each reporting date.
Amortised cost is calcuiated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of
specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded
derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair
valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt
component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when ane of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis,

¢ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; or

*  The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or

The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modily
the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis
when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s} is
prohibited.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities
designated at FYTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest
earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost,
respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at
FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

Loan commitment

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide a loan
with pre-specified terms o the customer during the duration of commitment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument,

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Eeuity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the praceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Reclassification of financial assets and Habilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
Financial labilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial Instruments:
Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset {or, whers applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of & group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

*  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

¢ It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without materia) delay to third party under
pass through arrangement,

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

*  The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred il and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

2.7.2  Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial Hability and the consideration paid,
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial lability, is recognised in statement
of profit and loss.

2.8 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all financial assets, other than financial
assets held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and [inancial guarantee contracts. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables, The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss aflowance based on lifetime expected credit loss (ECL)
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables
contain a significant financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the
loss allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss atlowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(1Zm ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring,

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date,

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD}, loss given default (LGD) (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default (EAD). The assessment of the
PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Company categories its financial assets as follows:
Stage 1 assets:

Stage | assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised,

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months
from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:

Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
1o the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an impairment loss or
reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss statement with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The Company’s product offering includes a facilities with a right to company to cancel and/or reduce the
facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit fosses to the
contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Companys future risk mitigation
procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

2.9 Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, power of attomey, credit enhancements such
as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a
minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a monthly/quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for
example, securities relating to margin requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
2.10  Write-offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

2.11 Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either;

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

R
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The Fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest, A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets For
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards (o the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and Habilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole} at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterpariies for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reciassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

212 Operating leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurerent approach for afl leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured al cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assels includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for shorl term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As
a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

Earnings per share;

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax atiributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Retirement and other employee benefit:
Provident fund and national pension scheme:
The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined

contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value
of the obligation under such benefit ptan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,
Compensated absences:

The eligible employecs of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave
entitiement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Deferred bonus:

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation Plan. A
pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled for benefits under this plan. Such deferred
compensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future petiod of lime. The measurement for the
same has been based on actuarial assumptions and principles.

Share-based payment arrangements:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company. These
are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. These includes
Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference between the SAR price and
the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company on the date of exercise, either by way
of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate
parent Company. These are classified as equity settled share-based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eveniually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the *ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in
instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each
instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs,

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day~to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates,
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule I for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the Property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building (other than Factory Building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. | 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
componenls which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. Intangible assets
are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.
Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced lo its recoverable amount, The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment,
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2.19.1

2.19.2

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability,

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there s a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent labilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtuatly certain, then,
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
caleulated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Delerred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and labilities.
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Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be realized in future.
MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the
amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are nat
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptiens are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management
itas made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s financial assets are managed together (o achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.
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Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage | assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An assel moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-locking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainiy at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
Tepresents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the preduct life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other [ee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument.

Impairment of Financial assets:

‘The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies, Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

*  PD calculation includes historical data, assumplions and expectations of future conditions.
*  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and

so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment.
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*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
*  Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

*  Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such
as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

*  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

Itis Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exist, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in refation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of ouiflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factars including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents, Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods,

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Standards issued but not yet effective:

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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4.A

5.A

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Short term bank deposits with banks *
(other bank deposits with maturity less than 12 menths)

Earmarked balance with bank {unpaid dividends)

Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:

Fixed deposit pledged against overdraft facility
RBL Bank Limited

* Fixed deposit with bank eamns interest at fixed rate.

Derivative financinl instruments
Breakup of Derivative firancial instruments

Fair Value Asscts
Mark 1o market on interest rate swap
Embedded derivatives in marker-linked debentures (liabilities)

Fair Value Liabilitics
Mark 10 Market on interest rate swap
. Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures (liabilities)

As ot
March 31, 2020

Asat
March 31, 2019

Asat
April 01, 201§

0.03 - 0.01
1,587.51 1,050.24 152.95
1,587.54 1,050.24 152.96
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
- 50.02 50.02
345 3.31 -
3.45 53.33 50.02
As at As at Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
- 50.00 50.00
- 50.00 50.00
Asat As at As at
Murch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
- 1.01 26.44
17.84 - .
17.84 1.01 26.44
- 260.35 2072
5.70 - .
570 260.35
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5. Derivative financial insiruments

The Company enlers into derivatives for risk management purposes, These include hedyes that cither meet the hedge sccounting requircments or hedges that are cconomic hedges,

but the Company has elected not t apply hedge accounting requirements,

The sable betow shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities tagether with their notional amounts,

As at March 31, 2020
. . - . . Fair value
£ . J
Porticulars Unil Currency Notional | Fair value Asset Unit Currency Notional linbility
(i) Emhedded derivatives*
I market linked debentures 17.84 570
Total Derivative Financial Instruments Total 17.84 Total 5.70
As at March 31, 2019
. . . . . Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency Notional | Fair value Asset Unit Curreney Notional liability
()Interest eate derivalives
Interest Rate Swaps Rs. Million INR 2,500 1.0 Rs, Million iINR 23,250 260.35
Interest Rate Future G-See Units 3.800,000 0.18| G-Scc Units 14,500,000 9.69
Less: amounts offset (0.I5) (9.69)
(Refer Note 5.15)
Total Derivative Financial Instrumenis 1.01 260.35
As at April 01, 2018
. - . . N Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency Notional | Fair value Asset Unit Currency Nalienal tiability
{)Interest rate derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps Rs. Mitlions INR 6,500 26.44( Rs. Million INR 8.000 20,72,
Interest Rate Future G-Sec Units 5.444,000 329 - -
Less: amuunts offset (3.29) -
(Refer Note 5.B)
TFotal Devivative Financial Instruments 26.44 20,72

Note: The notionalfunits held indicate the value of fransactions outs lznding at the year end and aee not indicative of cither the market risk or credit sk

*An embedded derivative is « component of a hybrid jnstrument that also includes a nen-derivative host contract with the cffect that some of the cush flows of the combined

instruzment vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. refer Note 2,5,5 for further details,

Hedging activities and derivatives

The Company is exposed te certain risks relating to its ongoing busincss aperations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are interest rate tisk and equity index

risk. The Company's risk management strategy and how it is npplicd 1o munage risk are explained in Note 42,

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Compuny has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

6. Securities held for trading

Asat Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

(i) Government Debt Sceurities - 13,679.23 14,406.88

(ii) Debt securities 0.21 125.30 389.24

@ity Exchange Traded Funds 30.79 - -

(iv) Preference Shares - - 28.76

Total 31.00 13,804.53 14,824.88

(i) Investments outside India - - -

(i) Investments in India 31.00 13,804.53 14,824.88 i
|

Total 31.00 13,804.53 14,824.88




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial stalements {continued)

(Currency : Tndian rupees in million)

7. Reccivahbles
a) Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsceured
{refer mote 5.A)

Trade Receivables (a)

b) Other receivables
Receivables considered good - Unsecured

Other receivables (b)
Todal Receivables (z) + ()

¢} Reconciliation of Impairment allownnce ¢n trade and lease reecivables:

Impairment altowance measured as per simplificd approach
Impzirment allowance - Opening Balance

Akl {icss): asset originated or acquired (nery
Impairinent allowance - Closing Balunce

Notes;

Asal
March 3{, 2020

Asat
Murch 31, 2019

Asat
April 0, 2018

11.90

6.283.79

+4,563.14

1194

13.73

6,283.79

0.84

4,563.14

95.30

13.73

0.84

95.30

15.63

06.284.63

4,658.44

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

1) No Irade or wther receivables ata duc from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person,

2) No trade or other receivables are due from finns or private companies in which directors is pantner, % dircctor or

d) Trade reccivibles doys pust due

a member,

As al March 31, 2020

Current

190
days

91180
days

181-270 days

270- 360
days

> 360 days

Total

ECL Rales

Estimated total gross carying umount at
default
ECL - Simplificd approach

25.63

25.63

Net carcying amount

25.63

25.63

As at March 31, 2019

Current

144
days

01-180
doys

181-270 days

270- 360
days

> 360 days

Total

ECL Rates

Estimated total gross carrying smaunt at
defalt *
ECL - Simptificd approach

6,283.79

6,283.79

6,283.79

6,283.79

Nel corcying smount

As wt April 01, 28

Current

days

41-130
days

181-270 days

270- 364
days

> 360 days

Toiak

ECL Rates

Estimated total gross carrying amauat ar
default *
ECL - Simplified approuch

4.563.14

4.563.14

Net rarteying amount

4,563.14

4.563.14

* Receivables largely includes receivables from clearing house and companics in same group. The Company bas no history and expeets no default on these reccivables, accordingly no

aflowance




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01,2018
8. Loans (at Amortised cost)
Other loans
Corporate credit 3,275.74 - -
Retail Credit 3,142.83 - -
Total gross : 6,418.57 - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note 8.A) (25.67) - ~
Total net 6,392.90 - -
Sccured by marketable securities & unlisted securities 2,881.58 - -
Unsecured 3,536.99 -
Total gross 6,418.57 - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note 3.A) {25.67) - -
Total net 6,392.90 - -
Loans in India
Public sector - - -
Others 6,418.57 : - -
‘Total Gross 6,418.57 - .
Less: Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note R.A) (25.67) - -

Total net 6,392,990 - -




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to i o hod £ 1)

(Currengy * Indian rupees in million)

BA  Credit quatity of assets

The sabsle belnw shaws the ecedit quality and the maximum exposure w credit risk based on the Campany's year-end siage ehassification, The amounts presented are gross of impairment allewances.

Lnans a1 Amnartised Cost

As nt March 3, 2020 Asal March M, 2019
Particulars ;
Stage | Stape Nl Stape HI Totul Stuge [ Siage 11 Stage NI Tulal

Perfarming

High grade 0,271.19 - - 627119 - - . -

Standard prade - 147.38 . 14738 - . - -
Non-perlerming

Individually impaired - - - - . - - .
Total 6,27L19 147.38 - 6,418.57 - - - -

Reconeiliation of changes in gross corrying amount and corresponding ECIL allowances for losns and advances:

The fullowing disclosure provides singe wise recenciliation of the Company's gross carrying wmount and BCL ali s for Joans amd ad % to corporales and retail custamers.

The "New assets originaled / repay reeeived {net} cepresent the gross carmying amount and associated allowance ECL impacl fram Iransactions within the Company's Tending portfelie,

Reconsilintion f moygment Tor the yenr ended March 3t, 2028

Nan credil impaired Credit impuired Toal
Stage 1 Stage It Stage 11 °
Particutars
Gross Carrying Allewance Gross carrying Allowance Gremss carrying Allawance Grass carrying Allowance
Amaount e ECL Amount Tor £CI. Amoual for ECL Amourt fur ECL

Qpening halance - - - - - - - -
New assets originated £ nepayments teceived (net) 6.271.19 25.08 147.38 0.59 - - 6,418.57 15.67
Closing halance 6,271,19 25.08 147,38 1.59 - - 641857 2567

Reyiuyifiation / movement for (¢ vear ended March 31, 2049

‘There were no loans as at Macch 31, 2009 and as at April 01, 2018. Benee, disclosure for recencilialion / mevement is not disclosed.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Curmency : Indian rupees in milfion) As at As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

9. Other financial assets

Deposits placed with exchange/depositories 121.00 139.90 112.40
Deposits- others 1,03 1.07 0.82
Margin placed with broker (refer note 5.B) 11.62 303.47 41.51
Accrued interest on margin 0.25 0.28 0.69
Other assels - - 9.39

133.90 444,52 164.81

10. Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes (net) 136.65 145.62 306.19

136.65 145,62 306.19

11. Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets

Loans
Expected credit loss 6.46 -
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangibie assets
Difference between book and tax depreciation 1.48 2.07 2.38

Invetsment and ether financials instruments
anveisment and other fipancials instruments

Unrealised loss on derivatives - 89.78 6.31
Fair valuation of investments and securities held for trading - loss in valuation - - 2.26
Fair valuation of cmployee stock option - - 3
MAT ercdit entitlement - - 6.47

Employee benefit obligations

Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.13 048 37.26
Others - [.83 -
8.07 94.16 92.45

Deferred tax liabilities

Invetsment and gther financials instruments

Fair valuation - securities held for trading 0.25 19.73
Unrealised gain on derivatives - 0.40 10.92
0.25 20.13 10.92

7.82 74.03 81.53
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupces in mitlion)

13.

14.

14.A

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2048
Other non-financial assets
{Unsccurcd considered good, unless stated otherwisc)
[npul tax credit 40.77 2242 11.67
Veador Advances 12.38 370 1.32
Coniribution to gratuity fund (nct) (refer note 31) 1.36 L.50 1.47
Prepaid expenses 3.62 1.53 1.85
Advances to employees 0.2% 1.88 -
Others 9.01 900 -
67.43 40.03 16.31
Trade Payables
(i) toral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises - - -
(i) total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail
enterprises {Refer noie 5.8) 6201 49.40 54,64
62.01 49.40 54.64

Details of dues to micro and sinall enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs.Nil {March 31, 2019: Rs.Nil; April 01, 2018: Rs Nil) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium

Eaterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Supplices” registered under this act. The

afcrementioncd is based on the responses reccived hy the Company 10 its inquirics with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act,

Debt securities
dr criortised cost
(Refer Note 15.A and 15,B)

Redecmible non-convertible debentures - securcd

Market linked debensures 1,145.26
Public issuc 213647
Total 3,281,73
Bebt sceurities in India 3,281,73

Debt securitics outside India -

Total 3,281.73




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Neotes te financial statements (continucd)

(Curreney : Indian rupees in miflion)

Asat As at Asat
Mazrch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

16. Borrowings other than Debt Securitics
(at amrortised cost}

Secured

Borrowings (Repo) - 14,162.90 17,373.62
{Sceured by pledge of Government securitics and Treasury-bills)

{March 31, 2019; Repayable on Apri 02, 2019 Interest payable in range of 5.50% to

7.30%)

(April 1, 2018; Repayahie on April 03, 2018 Interest payable in range of 4.40% to
7.10%%)

Unsecured

Loun from refited partics (refer note 39) 20,28 5,052.27 196.08

(Repayable on demand, Interest payable in the range of 11.60% to 11.75% for March
31, 2020 and 9.00% 10 12.50% for March 31, 2019, 9% for April 01, 2018)

29.28 19,215,17 17,569.70
Borrowings in India 29.28 19,215.17 17,569.70
Borrowings outside India - - -
29.28 19,215.17 17,569.70
17.  Suberdinated Liabilities
taf Amaortised Cost)
Unsecured
Preference Shares - privately placed 340.55 516.59 516.59
(i) Subsidiarics -
(i) Other 31638 470.70 470.70
Interest accrued - subordinated liabilities 30.17 45,89 45.89
340,55 516,59 516,59
Subordinated Habikitzes in Indin 340.55 516,59 316,59
Subordinated liabilitics outside India - - -
340,55 516.59 516.59

The Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each were issued at the rate of Rs. 15 per share. The Preference Shares were allotted on July 19, 2013,
The Preference Shares are Cumulative and Redeemable. Fhe Preference Shares carry a Cumulative dividend of 14.625%. "The Preference Shares will be
redeemed at a premium of Rs. 5 per preference share over the Face value togetier with the unpaid dividend till the date of redemption. The preference
share will be compulsorily redeemed at the end of 10 years from the date of abloiment. The Company and the investor can seek the early redemption of
preference shares afier 5 years from the date of allotment by giving carly redemption notice from May 16 10 May 31, every year. In such a case, Company
shall redeem preference shares within 30 days of receving carly redemption notice.

In ine with the terms, during the year ended Mareh 31, 2020, the Company has redecsned 10,688,000 preference shares basis the carly redemption requests
reecived. Consequently, as required under the Companics Act, the Company has also transferred amount Rs, 106.88 Mitlion, being Face value of
ference shares redeemed, 1o capital redemetion reserve from its free reserves.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

15.A Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:
As at March 31, 2020

Redeemable non-convertible debentures - secured

Month 9% - 107, 0% -11% LD Grand total
Mar 2021 - - 368.38 368.38
Jul 2021 - - 2472 24.72
Aug 2021 482.45 - - 482.45
Feb 2022 . - 70.04 70.04
Mar 2022 - - 186.55 186.55
Dec 2022 - - 101.28 101.28
Feb 2023 - - 228.83 228.83
Jun 2023 - - 54.72 5472
Feb 2023 351.52 - “ 351,52
Feb 2025 443,93 401.49 - 845.42
Dec 2026 - - 110.73 110.73
Feb 2030 263.41 276.34 - 539.75

1,541.31 677.83 1,145.25 3,364.39
Add: interest accrued ** 33.90
Less: unamortised issuance cost (116.56)

__ 328173
*MLD represents market linked debentures
** Interest accrued but not due is payable on next interest payment date for respective ISINs,

As at March 31, 2019

There were no debt securities as at March 31, 2019. Hence, disclosure for maturity profile and rate of
interest of debt securities is not disclosed.

15.8 Details of debt securities:

Redeemable non-convertible debentures - secured

Public issue:

Debentures are secured by way of a charge in favour of the Debenture Trustee on present and/or future
receivables and/or pari passu charge on an identified immovable property of the Company as may be
decided mutually by our Company and the Debenture Trustee.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has raised Rs 2,219.13 million worth of
redeemable non-convertible debentures through public issue. As at March 31 2020, the Company has
utilised the whole of the aforementioned net proceeds towards the objects of the issue as stated in the
prospectus.

e Market linked debentures:

T
vugf {ﬁr :T}:Q\\
- ”f‘-" “WMarket linked debentures are secured by first charge / pari passu charge, as the case may be, on property

.u Td on present & future receivables, loans, securities, investments & other financial assets.

it %B-ﬁ\
W tee ﬁ case of market linked debentures the interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying
‘- I

-" ! Andices and is fluctuating in nature.
R




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
18. Other financial liabilities
Cther payables 17.75 - -
Accrued salaries and benefits 0,02 20.00 39.07
Provision for dividend distribution tax - 9.25 9.34
Unpaid dividends 3.45 3.31 0.39
21,22 32.56 48.80
19. Current tax lizbilities (nef)
Provision for taxation (net) 34.43 80.24 194.00
34.43 80.24 194.00
20. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated leave absences 0.54 1.45 1.10
Deferred bonus - - 105.52
Others 9.01 9.01 .01
9.55 10.46 115.63
21. Other non-financial lizbititics
Statutory liabilities* 6.22 3.71 14,92
Others 6.41 12.63 3.63
12,63 16.34 18.55

* Includes withholding taxes, provident fund, profession tax and other statutory dues payables




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

oy (continued)

Notes to i

{Currency : Indisn rupees in million}

As ut March 31, 2020 As m March 31, 2019 Asal April 01, 2018
No of shures Astotint No of shares Amaunt No ol shares Amount
22.  Equity sharc capital
Autborised :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 41,620,000 416.20 41,620,000 416.20 41,620,000 416.20
Preference shares of Rs 10 cach 31,380,000 31380 31,380,000 31380 31.380.000 31380
73,800,000 730.00 73,000,000 730,00 73,000,000 730.00
Tssued, Subscribed and Pald up:
Equily Shares of Rs,10 each $,315,332 4335 3,435,332 3435 3435382 3435
8,335.332 $3.35 3,425,332 14.35 3435132 34.35
—
22.A Reconcillation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2020 As al March 31, 2019 Asat April 01, 2018
No of shares Amount No of shares Amaunt No ol shares Amounl
Outstanding at the beginning ol the year 3,435,332 34.35 3,435,332 34.35 2,655,020 26.55
Shates issued duning the year {Refer nole
below) 4,900,000 49. - - 780,312 7.80
Outstanding at e end af the year 8,335,332 $31.35 2,435,332 34.35 3,435,332 34,38

Noles:

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has issued 49.00.000 fully paid-up equity shares af Rs.10 each al a premium of Rs 542 cach lor the cansideration of Rs.2,704.80

million e Edelweiss Securities Limited (hrough rights issue.

22.B Terms/rights atiached 1o cquity shares :

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value ol Rs. LO/-. Each holder of cquity shares is entitled (o one vote per shate held.

In the event ol liguidation af the Campany, the equity sharchalders will be eatitled (o receive the remaining assets of the Carnpany, atter distribution of all prefereniial amounts, il any,

in proportion to the number of equity shares ekl by the shareholders.

22.C Shures held by holding/ullimate holding company

As at March 31, 2020 As al March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
No of shares % holding No of shares T holding No of shares % holding
Hulding company
Edelweiss Securitics Limited 5,243,544 62.91% - -
Fellow subsidinries
Ldelweiss Financial Services Limited * 3,091,798 37.09% 3,435,332 100.00% 3435332 100.005%
8,335,331 108005 3,435,332 100.00% 3,435,332 1 30.00%
eI
22,8 Details of shaves held by sharcholders holding more thun 5% of the uggregate shares in the Company
As ut March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As al Aprii 0%, 2018
No of shures % holding No of shares % hokding Na af shares % holding
Huolding company
Edelweiss Securities Limiled 5,243,534 62.51% - - - -
Fellow subsidiaries
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited * 3,091,798 7.00% 3435332 100.00% 3435332 100,00%
8.335.332 F00.00%: 14135332 100.00% 1435332 180.00%

# including 6 shares held by naminees of Edelweiss ¥inoncial Services Limited

22.E ‘There ure na shares reserved for issuc under optlots and contracts / contmitments for the sule of shares / dlsinvestment.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

23. Other Equity

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 01,2018
a. Capital redemption rescrve 116.59 971 971
b. Securities Premium Reserve 336761 71181 711.81
¢. Statulory Reserve 961.23 921.04 921.04
d. General Reserve - 90.26 9(.26
e, Relained Earnings 74.74 (49.49) (24.91)
I, Deemed capita contribution - Equity 15.18 15.18 15.18
4,535.35 1,698.51 1,723.09

A. Nature and purposc of Reserves

a. Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised ondy for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013,

b. Securities Premium Reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as

issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

c. Statutory Reserve
Reserve created under 45-IC(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than tweniy per cent of its net profit every year as

disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

d. Generai Reserve
General reserve comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings which are transferred from the retained carnings.

¢. Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings afier laxes.

{. Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capitat contribution - Equity relates to Share options granted to eligible employees of the company by the parent company under its
employee share oplion plan.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial staternents (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

23. Other Equity

23. Other Equity (continued)

B.

L

1.

oI

1v.

Y.

VL

Movement in Other Equity

Capital redemption reserve

Opening Balance
Add : Additions during the year

Securities Premium Reserve

Qpening Balance

Add ; Premium received on issue of equity shares

Statutory Reserve

Opening Balance
Add : Reserve created for the year

General Reserve

Qpening Balance
Less: Transler 10 Capital Redemption Rescrve

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add: Profit / (loss) lor the year
Add: Other Comprehensive Income
Less: Income lax effect of ESOPs

Amount available for appropriation {a)

Appropriations:
Transfer 10 Special Reserve
Transler 1o Capital Redemption Reserve

Appropriations (b}
Total V-{(a-b)

Decmed capital contribution - Equity

Opening Balance
Add : Additions during the year

Total = (I+H+I+1V+V+VI)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 3§, 2019
5.71 9.7%
106.88 -
116.59 9.71
711.81 TLERL
2,655.80 "
3,367.61 711.81
921.04 921.04
40.1% -
961,23 921.04
90.26 90.26
(90.26) -

- 90.26
(49.49) 24.91)
184,29 13.09

(3.25) 0.0

- (3711
131.55 {49.49)
(40,19 -
(16.62) -
(56.81) -

74,74 (49.49)

15.18 15.18

i5.18 15,18
4,535.35 1,698.51




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

24, Interest Income
On Financiai assets measured at amortised cost
Interest income on Loans
Interest income on fixed deposits with Bank
Interest income on collaterised borrowing and lending operations
Other interest income
- On margin with brokers
- On others

On Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income from debt securities held for trading

25. Dividend Income

Dividend on securities held for trading

26. Fee income

Procesing and other fees

27 Other income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {net)
Interest on income tax refund

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
98.55 -
110 345
37.43 2.39
16.01 2.18
0.95 1.99
1,036.10 1,400.65
1,190.14 1,410.66
- 144
. 144
15.28 -
15.28 -
0.01 0.21
1.51 12.28
1.52 12.49




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continucd)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
28. Finance costs
On Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings
- Interest on collateralised borrowing and {ending operations 55.87 79.31
- Interest on clearcorp repo order matching system 717.68 943.34
- Interest on loan from fellow subsidiaries 55.24 7919
- Interest on Intercorporate deposits 46.39 -
Interest on debt securities
- Interest on debentures (public issue) 41.23 -
~ Interest on market linked debentures 1.02 -
Interest on subordinated liabilities
- Dividend on preference shares 34.08 55.24
Other interest expense
- Finance and bank charges 6.54 5.04
- Collateralised borrowing and lending charges 26.33 42.34
984.38 1,204.46
29. Net gain/{loss) on [air value changes (including freasury income)
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On securitics held for trading 823.9¢6 18.60
On derivative financial instrument (545.54) {77.36)
278.42 (58.76)
Fair value changes
Realised 277.44 117.45
Unrealised 0.98 (176.21)
278.42 (58.76)
30. Impairment on financial instruments
Expected credit loss
Loans 25.67 -
25.67 R
3i. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 75.61 25.18
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.94 3.54
Expense on share based payments - Refer Note below 2.0t 547
Staff welfare cxpenses 0.81 1.58
80.37 35.77
Notes:
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Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL") the ultimate holding Company has Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP) and Stock
Appreciation Rights Plans (SAR} in force. Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes, parent entity has granted an ESCP/SAR option (o acquire
qgi\t)ir shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL. has
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Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

{Currency:Indian rupees in million}

31. Employce benefits expense (continucd)

a

b

)

L]

Defined contribution plan - provident funds

In accordance with Employces' Provident Fund and Misceflanecus Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitied to receive
benefits under the providens fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a
determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The
employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company centributes an equal amount.

Amouni of Rs. 1.91 million {previous year: Rs. 3.33 million) is recognised as expenses and included in “Emgployee benefits expense”.

Defined benefit plan - gratuity

Ir accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-coatributory defined benefit arrangement
providing lump-sum gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all employees. The plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assels and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for grauity were carried out as at
March 31, 2020. The present value of the defined beaefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Based on the actuarial vatuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts out the status of the gratuity plan and the amountsg
recognised in the Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Present Value of DBO at Start of the year 7.91 7.48
Service Cost
a. Current Service Cost 047 111
b.Past Service Cost - -
c.Los«/(Gain) from Setlement - -
Interest Cost 0.26 0.49
Benefits Paid - {0.21)
Re-measurements - -
a.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumplions - -
b.Actuariat Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions 0.25 0.13
c.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past year (0.36) {0.27)
Effect of acquisition / (divestiture) - -
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Transfer En / (Out) (.24 {0.82)
Present Value of DBO at end of the year 4.28) 7.91
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asscts

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Fair Valuc of Plan Assets at start of the year 241 8.95
Coniributions by Employer 003 0.01
Benefits Paid - 0.21)
Interest Income Plan Assets 0.66 0.64
R{.’-ﬂll.’ﬂ'&'ll’rl,’l"f.’”fb‘ - -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on (0.62) 0.02
the net defind benefit liability / (asset)
Effect of acquisition / (divestiture} - -
Changes in foreign exchange rate - B
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 947 9.41
Actual Return on Plan Axsets 0.04 (L66
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Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Curreacy:Tadian rupees in miltion)

31, Employce bencfits expense (continued)

Expenses recongnised in the Profit and Loss Account

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 0.47 1.11
b.Past Service Cost - -
c.L.oss/{Gain) from Settlement - -
Net Interest on net defind benefit liability / (asset) {0.40} (0.16)
Changes in foreign exchange rate -
Employer £xpenses 0,07 0.96
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in the Balance sheet
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Present Value of DOB 4.28 791
Fair Value of Plan Assets 9.47 9.41
Liability / (Asset) recongised in the Bakance Sheet (5.18) (1.50)
Funded Status [Surplus/ (Deficit)t 5.18 1.50
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to 3.82 -
asset ceiling)
Liability / (Asset) recongised in the Balance Shect 1.36 1.50)
Of which,Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan 1 iabitities:(Gain)/Loss (0.36), 0.27)
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Eguity instruments - -
Debt instruments - -
Real estate - -
Drerivatives - E
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 99.6% 99.9%
OF which, Unit Linked 99.6% 99.9%
Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked - -
Asset-backed securitics - -
Structured debt - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0.6% 0.1%
Total 100% 100%
Actuarial assumptions:
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Salary Growth Rate (% p.a) 7% p.a 7% p.a
Discount Rate (% p.a) 5.90% p.a 1% pa
Withdrawal Rate (% p.a)
Senior 13% p.a 13% p.a
Middie 18% p.a 18% p.a
Junior 25% p.a 25% pa
Mortality Rate TIALM 2012-14 TALM 201214
(Ultimate) (Ultimate)
Inicrest Rate on Net DBO / (Asset ) (%) 7% pa 7.3% p.a
~|:Expected weighted average remaining working life (years) 5 Years 5 Years
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Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Currency:Indian rupees in million)

31. Empleyce benefits expense (confinued)

Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Balance at start of year (Loss) Gain 6.16 -
Re-measurements on DBO
1 Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions - R
b.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptiony (0.25) (0.13)
c.Actuarial Lossf{Gain} from experience over [ast past year 0.36 0.27
Re-measurcments on Plan Assets
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on (0.62) 0.02
the net defind benefit liability / (asset)
Re-measurements on asset ceiling
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the assel (3.32) -
ceiling excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset)
Balance at end of year (LossY Gain 4.17) 0.16
Senitivity Analysis
DOB increases f (decreases ) by March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
1 % Increase in Salary Growth Rate 0.24 .39
1 % Decrease in Salary Growth Rate (0.23) {0.36)
{ % Increase in Discount Rate (0.23) {0.36)
[ % Decrease in Discount Rate 0.25 0.39
1 % Increase in Withdrawal Rate (0.01) (0.03)
| % Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 0.01 0.03
Mortality (Increase in cxpected lifetime by 1 year) - Negligibie
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) 0.00 Nepligible

Note: The sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valeation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other

parameters constant there are ne changes from ihe previeus period 1o the methods and asswnptions underlying the sensitiviry analyses.

Movement in Surplus / (Deficit)

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Surplus / (Deficit) at start of year 1.50/ 1,47
Net (Acquisition) / Divestiture - -
Net Tranfer {In) Qut 4.24 0.82
Movenient during the year - -
Current Serviee Cost (0.47) {1.11)
Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest on net DBO .44 0.16)
Changes in foreign exchange rate - -
Re-measurements {4.34) 0.16
Contributions / Benefits 0.03 0.01
Surplus / (Deficit) at end of year 1.36 1.50




Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

32, Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion 0.51 0.15
Auditors' remuneration 2.83 1.77
Commission and brokerage 2.20 0.22
Communication 4.23 1.57
Directors' sitting fees 0.30 0.46
Insurance 6.13 0.09
Legal and professional fees 13.30 5.83
Printing and stationery 0.27 0.26
Rates and taxes 12.02 8.63
Rent 7.32 9.09
Repairs and maintenance 0.20 0.06
Electricity charges - 0.93
Computer expenses 0.39 0.57
Computer software 4.74 6.09
Corporate social responsibility - 5.00
Clearing & custodian charges 3.17 0.24
Rating support fees 0.22 0.13
Membership and subscription 0.48 0.09
Office expenses 5592 17.46
Stamp duty 7.08 2.41
Travelling and conveyance 347 5.63
Miscellaneous expenses 1719 71.20

125.88 73.88

32.A Auditors' remuneration:
As a Auditor

Audit fees 2.56 170

Certification fees 6.15 -

Reimbursement of expecnses 0.12 0.07
2.83 1.77

In addition to above, during the year the Company has paid an amount of Rs. 4.12 million to statutory
auditors towards certification fees for Public issue of NCDs. The fees paid to the statutory auditors has been
amortised as over the NCD period and the same has been considered in calculation of Effective Interest Rate
(EIR)




Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million) For the year ended For the year ended

328

32.C

32.D

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Details of CSR Expenditure:

Gross Amount required te be spent by the Company as
per the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act,
2013. 9.39 14,99

Amount Spent (paid in cash)

i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above - 5.00
Amount Spent (yet to be paid in cash)}

i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -
ii) On purpose other than (i) above - -

- 5.00
Amount paid to EdelGive Foundation - 5.00
{refer note 39 related party disclosure)
Paid to external parties - -

- 5.00

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is
conscious of its Corporate Social Responsibility and, had accordingly established a CSR arm, "EdelGive
Foundation” in the year 2008. As an amount of Rs. 308.14 miilion (Previous year: Rs. 225.19 million)
{representing more than 2% of the consolidated profit of the group) was spent by the group as a whole
towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not incurred the prescribed
CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31, 2020,

Operating leases

The Company has taken premises on operating lease. Rental expenses for the year aggregated to Rs.7.32
million (Previous year Rs.9.09 million} which has been included under the head Other expenses — Rent in
the statement of profit and loss.

Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs
expenditure like common senior management compensation cost, Group medictaim, etc. which is for the
common benefit of itself and its certain subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is
reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other
companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, costs like rent, electricity charges incurred by the
Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate companies (if any} are recovered as
reimbursement by the Company from the subsidiaries and associate companies on similar basis. Accordingly,

and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 31 and 32 include reimbursements paid




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

J33. Income Tax

33.A Component of Income Tax Expenses

Current tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Deferred tax relating to temporary differences

Total Tax Charge for the year

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

33.B Reconciliation of total tax charge

Profit / (Loss) before Taxes
Statutory Income Tax rate

Tax Charge at Statutery Rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Tax effect of :
Income / Items not subject to tax to chargeable to lower tax rate
Dividend Income
Non deductible expenses
Dividend on Preference shares
Interest on shortfall of advance tax
Deonation expense
Impact on account of 2doption of new tax regime
Others

Total tax expenses reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Income Tax Rate

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
28,78 7947
(15.62) {10.09)
66.21 (36.79)
79.37 32.59
13.16 69.38
66.21 (36.79)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
263.66 45.68
25.17% 34.94%
66.36 15.96
(15.62) (10.09)
- (0.50)
8.58 19.30
0.45 0.08
- 0.87
18.21 -
L39 6.97
79.37 32.59
30.10% 71.35%




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notcs to lnancial statements (continued)
(Currency : Indiun rupees in million)

33.C Movement of Deferred Tox assets

Financial year 2019-20

Muovement for the period {2019-20)

Ason Recognised [n Recognlsed in Recognised in Others Total moventent Ason
Aprl 1, 201% profll or Joss OcCE other cqnity A o Maorch 31, 2020

Deferred tox assets

Property, Plant and Equipment & Inlangible 241 (0.60) . - - (0.60) t.47
assets

Unrealised loss on Derivatives 89,78 {89.78) - - - {(89.78) .
Employee benefits obligations 048 (0.35) - - - (0.338) 0.13
Expected eredil loss pravision - 6.46 - - - 6.46 646
Others 1.83 (1.83) - - - {1.83) -
Defeered tux lubilitles

Fair valuation of investraents and securities (19.73) 15.49 - - - 19.49 0.2
held for irading - gain ir valuation

Unreafised gain on dervatives (0.40} 0.40 - - - 040 -
Drelerred tux assets {net) 74.03 {66.21) - - - (66,21} 782
Finuncial year 2018-19

Movement for the period {2018.19)
Ason Recognlsed in Recognised in+~ Recopnised in Othse Total ' Asaon
April 1, 2018 profit or loss oct ather equity i aratmovement o varch 31, 2019

Drelerred tux nsscts

Praperty, Plant and Equipment & Intangible 238 (031} - - - 0.38) 207
nssets

Unrealised Joss on dernivatives 6.31 8347 - - - 83.47 19.78
ESOP cost awn - - {3771 . (31.7h -
MAT credit entitlement 6,47 - - - {6.47) (6.47) -
Empioyce benefits obligations 3126 (36,72) (0.08) - - (36.78) 048
Others - 1.83 - - - 183 183
Deferred tux llubititles

Fair valuation ol investinents and securilics 226 {21.99) - - - 2199 {i9.73)
held for rading - gain in valuation

Unrealised gain on dervatives (10,92} 10.52 - - - 10.52 (0.40)
Deferred tux assets (net) §1.53 36.79 {0.06) (37.77) (6.47) {7.50) 74.03
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in miltion)

34. Earnings per Share

number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Net profit / (loss)attributable to Equity holders of the Company (A)
Weighted average Number of Shares

- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

- Number of equity shares issued during the year

Total number of cquity shares outstanding at the end of the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
(based on the date of issue of shares) (B)

Basic and diluted carnings per share (in rupees) (A/B)

35. Contingent Liability & Commitment;

&

and resulis of operations.

35.1 Contingent Liability

For the year ended

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average

Dituted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company with the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
E Taxation matters related to income tax for Assessment year 2009-10 and
Assessment year 2013-14 in respect of which appeal is pending 0.60 0.60
Taxation matters related 10 service tax for the period from April 1, 2011 - 3.08
to March 31, 2016 in respect of which appeal is pending
35.2 Commitment
Asat Asat

March 31, 2019

a) Uncalled liabilities on non-current investments -
b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining (o be executed on capital -
Jaccount and not provided for

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
184.29 13.09
3,435,332 3,435,332
4,900,000 -
8,335,332 3,435,332
3,448,720 3,435,332
53.44 3.81

The basic and diluted carnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as at the year end,

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a lability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such mateers in is
financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possidle, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the
financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becames probable.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial position




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

36. Segment Reporting
Primary Segment (Business segment)

The Company's business is organised and management reviews the performance based on the business segments as meationed below:

Sepment Activitics covered
Capital based business Tneome from treasury operations, income from investments and dividend income
Financing business Retail financing

Income for cach segment has been specifically identified. Expendilure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with
individual segments or have been allecated 1o segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to
revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Secondary Segment
Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the

domestic segment and therefore there is no repertable geographic segment.

Segment information as at and for the Yyear ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Financing business Caplta_l based Unallocated Total
business
Revenue from Operations
Interest Income 98.55 1,091.55 0.04 1,190.14
Other Operting income 8.17 278.43 8.62 205,22
Total Revenue from Operations 106.72 1,369.98 8.66 1,485.36
Interest Expenses [3.86 968.71 1.81 984.38
Other Expenses 87.34 145.15 4.83 237.32
Total Expenses 101.20 1,113.86 6.64 1,221.70
Segment profit before taxation 552 256.12 2.02 263.66
Income Tax Expenses 79.37 79.37
Profit for the year 184.29
Other Comprehensive Income - - (3.25) (3.25)
Total comprehensive income 181.04
Segment Assets 8,026.28 189,99 199.53 8,415.80
Segment Liabilities 3,710.61 36.54 49.95 3,797.10
Capital expenditure 034 . 0.92 - 1.26
Depreciation and amortisation 0.65 475 - 540
Significant non-cash items 25.42 (0.66) - 24.76
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statemenis {continued)

{Currency : Indian rupces in million}

36. Sepment Reporting (continued)

Sepment information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Financing business Call:lg;:::ed Unallocated Total
Revenue from Operations
Interest Income - 1,410.66 - 1,410.66
Other Operting income - 13.93 - 13.93
Total Revenue from Operations - 1,424.59 - 1,424.59
Interest Expenses - 1,204.46 “ 1,204.46
Other Expenses - 174.45 - 17445
Total Expenses - 1,378.91 - 1,378.91
Segment profit/(loss) before taxation - 45.68 - 45.68
Income Tax Expenses - 32,59 - 32.59
Profit for the year - 13.09 - 13.09
Oiher Comprehensive Income - 0.10 - 0.10
Totat comprehensive income - 13.19 - 13.19
Segment Asscts - 21,913.97 - 21,913.97
Segment Liabilitics - 20,181.11 - 20,181.11
Capital expenditure - 8.00 - 8.00
Depreciation and amortisation - 6.04 - 6.04
Significant non-cash items - 71.04 - 7104




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

37.  Cosh Flow Disclosure

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivics

. Asat . Changes in Fair Asat
Particubars March 31, 2019 Cash Flows value Other Mareh 31, 2020
Debt Sccuritics - 328173 - - 328173
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 19,215.17 (19,185.89) - - 29.28
Subordinated Liabilitics 586.59 (176.04) - - 340.55

19.731.76 (16,080.20) - - 3.651.56

" Asat Changes in Fair Asat
Farticulors April OF, 2018 Cash Flows value Others March 31, 2019
Barrowings (ather than debt securitics) [7,569.70 £,64547 “ - (9,215,417
Subordinated Liabilitics 516.59 - - - 516.59

14,086.29 1,645.47 - - 19,731.76
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Cureency: Indian Rupees in millions)

39, Disclosure of related parties transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures"

L List of related parties and relationship

Bolats LEo

Name of related parties

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Compuny

Fellow Subsidiaries
(with whom transaction have taken place)

Key Management Personnck

Non executive Director

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited (w.e.f March 31, 2020}

ECL Firance Limited
ECap Equities Limited
Edel Laad Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited (upto March 30}, 2020)

Edelweiss Broking Limited
Edelwetss Housing Finance Limited
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
EdelGive Foundatien

Edehweiss Capital Markets Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Commoditics Services Limited)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Edelweiss Business Services Limited {Merped with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

EFSL Teading Limited ’
EFSL Cotmtrade Limited

Edelweiss General Insuranee Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Venkalchalam Ramaswamy (spto Augus: 11, 2019) |

S Ranganathan *

P.N. Venkmtackalum

Kunnasagaran Chinniah (w.e.f December 13, 2019}
Venkatchalam Ramaswamy (w.e.f August 12, 2019)

Shabnam Panjwani

* No remuneration drawn from the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31,2049

ii. Transactions with related pacties :

Naiure of Transactions Related Parly Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A, Current account trapsactions
loans taken from (refer note 1 below) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5,360.00 3,365.00
ECap Equities Limited 9,000.00 4,566.00
Loan repaid to (refer note 1 below) Edebweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled 5,010.00 3,106.60
ECap Equities Limited 5,060.00 -
Loans given to {refer note 1 below) Edclweiss Broking Eimited 2,700.00 -
ECap Equities Limited 440,00 -
Repayment of loans by (vefer note | below) Edelweiss Broking Limited 600.00 .
ECap Equitics Limited 30.00 -
Inter carporate deposits {ICDs) suken from Edelweiss Sccurities Limited 4,773.20 -
Iater corporate deposits (ICDs) repaid 1o Edclweiss Securities Limited 4,7713.20 -
Ii. Secondary market transactions
Purchases of securities held for trading from ECL Finance Limited 724.39 2,625.64
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited . 1.132.24
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 0.84 102.42
Sale of securities held for trading to ECL Finance Limited 1,646,89 2.448.82
Edelweiss Broking Limited 85,05 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 101,35 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporte Services Limited - 240,79
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 166.49
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited - 86.19
Edelweiss General Insurance Limited “ 59.91
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 315.46
Margin pl Edelweiss Securities Limited 1.62 2.84
<uBlI ¢ Edel Investments Limited 1.93 .26
Q,V"’/“’-'ﬁ "\e& Edelweiss Custodiat Services Limited 2,586.68

axf “fé—\
14 ‘
/f?! Ms@mm\‘:\s

1,097.04
/IT\




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in millions)

39. Disclosure of related parties transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" {contd.)

Nature of FTransactions Related Party Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Margin refurd received from Edelweiss Securities Limited 1.63 3.56
Edel Investments Limited 2.00 0.19
Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited 2,670.84 1,118.75
Amount paid to Broker for trading in cash segment Edelweiss Sccurities Limited 87542 -
Amount received from Broker for trading in cash segment  Edelweiss Securities Limited -
922.84
Purchase of fixed usser from * Edelweiss Broking Limited 0,00 -
Edeleap Securities Limited 0.04 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited .01 -
~ Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.00 -
* Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited a9.00 -
* Bdelweiss Securities Limited 0.00 -
Sade of fixed asset 10 ECL Finance Limited 0.04 -
* Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited 0.00 -
* Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiied 0.00 -
~ Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.00 -
C. Other transactions
Interest income on loan given to Ecap Equities Limited 3,12 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 326 -
Interest received on debt insttuments from ECL Finance Limited .14 037
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.02 0.02
* Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.00 26,70
Interest Expense on loan faken from Ecap Equities Limited 26.13 4.69
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 211 46.95
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 27.55
Interest expense en ICDs taken from Edelweiss Securitics Limited 46.39 -
Interest received on margin placed with brokers Edelweiss Securities Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Custodinl Services Limited 7.59 .66
* Edel Investments Limited 0.00 -
Cost reimbursement paid to Edelweiss Fenancial Services Limited 890 1.76
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 54,66 7.73
Edelweiss Business Services Limited - 27.43
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.02 2.13
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.03 0.02
ECL Finance Limited 11,73 0.03
Ecap Equities Limited 0.45 0.22
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.06 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limiled 0.45 -
Cerporate Guarantee support fee Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4.67 4.38
Rating suppon fees paid 1o Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 022 0.12
Clearing charges and Stamp duty A Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited .98 0.0
paid to
Commission and brokerage paid to A Edelweiss Securities Limited 81,32 0.00
Edelweiss Breking Limited 2790 -
Edel Investment Limited 003 -
Advisory fee paid 10 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5,05 -
Danation given to EdelGive Foundation - 5.00
Remureration payable to executive director
(refer note 2 below) Venkatchalam Ramaswamy 24,43 9.40
§j,£§_gg§g§.‘pyid 10 non executive director P.N. Venkatachalarm 0.26 0.32
A e Vinod Juncja o
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in millions)

39. Bisclosure of related parties transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclesures™ (contd.)

Nature of Transactions Related Party Name March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
D. Balances with related parties
Liabilities
Corporate guarantee taken from Edelweiss Financial Scrvices Limited 310,38 916.77
Interest expenses accrued and due on borrowings Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled 0.34 -
Trade payables to Edelweiss Financial Services Limiied 0.66 309
~ Edelweiss Securities Limited 2.04 0.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 11.26 3.3
Edelweiss Business Services Limited - 11.63
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.27 -
~ ECap Equities Limited 0.00 0.07
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.01 -
Edel Investments Limited - 0.72
Ede? Land Limited - 0.38
ECL Finance Limited 15,55 0.23
Edclweiss Housing Finance Limited 1.34 -
Unsecured loan takea from ECap Equities Limited - 4,566.00
. Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited 28.94 480.22
Securities held for trading - Debentures of ECL Finance Limited 0.05 2.41
Edetweiss Housing Finance Limited 012 0.15
Edelweiss Retzit Finance Limited 0.03 -
Payable to Broker Edelweiss Securities Limited - 0.08
Assels
Accrued interest income on
debentures of A ECL Finance Limited 0.00 0.05
A Edelweiss Retnil Finance Limited 0.00 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.01 001
Trade & other receivables Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 10.62 -
* ECL Finance Limited 6.39 0.00
Edelweiss Securtties Limited 0.11 0.36
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 002
Edelweigs Custodial Services Limited 0.81 0.15
~ EFSL Trading Limited - 0.00
Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited - .14
* EFSL Comirade Limited - 0.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.04 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 0.74 -
Edel Land Limited 0.60 -
[oan given 10 Edelweiss Breking Limited 2,700.50 -
Ecap Equities Limited 569.50 -
Interest accrued on loans given to Edebweiss Broking Limited 2.93 -
Ecap Equities Limited 2.81 -
Margin Placed with Brokers Edelweiss Sccurities Limited 1.20 -
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 9.76 9393
Edel Investments Limited - 0.07
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.67 -

# - less than Rs, .01 million

Note:

- As part of fund based activities, intesgroup company loans and advances activities undertaken are

generally in the nature of revolving demand toans. Such loans and

advanees, voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, maximum
amount of loans given and repaid are disclosed above as in the view of the management it provides meaningful reflection of such related party teansactions on the
financial statements. Interest income znd expenscs on such loans und advances are disclosed on the basis of fufl amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.

[

- Information relating 1o remuneration paid to key managetial person mentiened above excludes provision made for grasuity,
are provided for group of employees on an overall basis.

leave encashment and deferred bonus which




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

40. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to supporl its business
and to maximise sharcholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckets in order 10 minimize liquidity risk.

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of the batance sheets is preserved.

<) Manage financial market risks arising from intercst rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on camnings,

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise sharcholder returns while maintaining strength and fiexibility of balance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business envirenment, financial market conditions
and interest rates environment.

Regulatory Capital

The Company, being an NBFC, has to maintain a minimum capital to risk-weighted asset ratio of 15% in accordance with Master
Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India.

The regulatory capital is computed as below:

As at Asat

Partictlars March 31, 2020 31 March 2019
Capital Funds

Net owned funds (Tier I capital) 1,784.99 1,588.72

Tier 11 capital 336.05 470.70
‘Total capital 2,121.04 2,059.42
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 3,783.63 7.092.27
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets/exposures:

Tier I capital 47.18% 2240%

Tier II capital 8.88% 6.64%

Total capitat Funds 56.06% 29.04%

Ne changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review
by the Board.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupecs in million)

41.

A.

Fair Value measurement:

Valuation principles

Fair valuc is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a linbility in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.c., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a
valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on 2 hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quated prices for identical instruments in active markets that company can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, arc derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire peried of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Thase that include one or more unobservable inpat that is significant to the measurement as
whole.

Refer note 2.11 for mare details on fair vatue hicrarchy
Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to cnsure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy, All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject to approvals by
various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference 1o externally queted prices or obseevable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation
is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given 1o information that is considered to be more rekevant
and reliable,

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions, However finance department is also responsible for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 202¢ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on o recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 17.84 17.84

Total derivative financial instruments - A - - 17.84 17.84

Financial Assets ireld for trading

Other debt securities - 0.21 - 0.21
Exchange traded fund wnits 30.79 - - 30.79
Total Financial nssets held for trading - B 30.79 0.21 N 31.00
'Fatal Financial asscts measured st fair value (A+B) 30,79 .21 17.84 48.84

Linbilitics measured at fuir value on 2 recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - . 570 5.70

Total derivative financial instruments - - 5,70 5.70

Total Financial liabilitics measured at £air value - - 5.70 5,710




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements {continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

41.

Fair Value measurement:

As at March 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recarring lusis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange-traded derivatives 0.18 - - 0.18

OTC derivatives - 1.01 - 1.0t
Tatal derivative financinl instruments - A 0,18 1.01 - .19
Financial Assets held for trading

Government debt securities - 13,679.23 - 13,679.23

Cther debt securities - 125.30 - 125.30

Preference Shares - - - R
Total Financial assets held for trading - B - 13.804.53 - 13,804.53
Tetal Financial assets measured at fair value (A+B) 0.18 13,805.54 - 13,805.72

Liabilitics messured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange-traded derivatives 9.69 - - 9.69
OTC derivatives - 260.35 - 260.35
Total derivative firanciaf instruments - A 9.69 260.35 - 270,04
‘Fotal Financial liabilitics measured at fair value 9.69 260.35 - 270.64

Valuation techniques:

Guovernment debt securities:

Government debt securities are financial instruments issued by sovereign governments and include both tong term bonds and short-term Treasury bills with
fixed or floating rate interest payments. These instruments are generally highty liquid and traded in active markets resulting in a Levet | classification.

Debt securities:
Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities, Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yiclds

prevailing in the market as at the teporting date. The Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever honds are traded actively. In cases
where debt securities are not activity traded, The Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Equity instruments, units of mutoal fund and Exchange traded fund units:

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified
as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAY), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such
instruments are also classified as Level 1. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially recognised at iransaction price and re-measured at eack reporting
date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level, Unlisted equity scurities are classified at Level 3.

Interest rate swaps;

Under Interest rate swap contract, the Company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate inlerest amount caleutated on ageeed notional
principai. Such contracts enable the Company to mitigate the risk of changing interest rate, the fair value of interest rate swap is determined by discounting the
future cash flows using the curves at the end of reporting period and the credit risk inherens in the contract. The Company classify the Interest rate swaps as

level 2 instruments.
Exchange traded derivatives:

Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock optiens, index/steck futures, company uses exchange traded prices to value these derivative and classify these
instrument as level |,

Embedded derivative:

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a way similar 10 a stand-afone derivative.

The Company uses valuation models which caleulate the present value of expected future cash flows, based upon ‘no arbitrage” principles. Inputs to valuation
modets are determined from observable market (Indices) data wherever possible, including Prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers, company classify
these embedded derivative as level 2 insteuments.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements {continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in million)
41. Fair Value measurement:
E. 'Fhere have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31,2019,

F. The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy

Embedded options
Financial year ended Murch 31, 2020 Assets Liabilities Net balunce
At April I, 2009 - - -
Issuances 17.84 3,70 12,14
Settlements - - -
At March 31, 2020 17.84 570 12,14

Financial year cnded Murch 31, 2019

During the year ended March 31, 2019, there were no financial instruments which were classified vnder Jevet 3 hierarchy. Hence, reconciliation table is not
disclosed,
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

41. Fair Yalue measurcment:

H. Fair value of financial instruments not measurcd at Fair value:

—

The table below is a comparison, by class, of the camrying amounts and fuir values of the Company's finsncial instruments that arc not earried at fair value in the financial
statements, The information given befow is with respect 10 financiaf assets and financial Fabilities measured at amortised cost for which the fair value is difference that the
carrying amount. For the remaining financials assets and financial liabititics measured at amortised cost. This tble does not include the fair values of non-finangial assets
amil nea-finuncial Liabilitics.

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Value Level t Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assels
Louans 6,392.90 - - 6.381.57 6,381.57

Financial Liabilitics

Debt securitics 328173 - 3,160.78 - 3.160.78
Subordinated Liabililics 340,55 - 334.84 - 334.84
As at March 31, 2019 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Terarl

Financial Ligbilitics
Subordinated Liabititics 506.59 - 518.63 - 518,63

Valuntion Methodelogies of Financial Insteuments rot measured at Fair value

Telow are the methodologies and assumptions wsed to determine Faic values for the above financial instrunients which are not recorded and measured it fair value in the
Campany's financial statements. These fir values were calculated For diselosure purposes only. The below incthodologics and assumplions relate only 1o the instrumerts
in the above tables and, as such, may differ fron: the techniques and assumptions explained in notes,

Short Term Finnncial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cash and cash cquivalents, bank bafances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trade and other receivables, tmde payables, Borrowings (other than
debt sceurities} appreximate the fair vatue heeause of their short-lerm nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other fimancials assets and other
financial liabilitics ix nat significant in cach of the years presented.

Financial assets a1 amortised cost

The fair vatues of financial assets measured at mnortised cost are cstimated using a discounted cash flow modet bascd on contractuat cash Aows using uctual or estimated
yields and discounting by yields incerporating the counterpartics” credit rigk.

Issued Debt

The fair value of issued debt s citimated by a discounted cash flow model.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)
42, Risk Management
42.A Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sells securities in market, or
offers other products or services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company’s overall objective is 1o manage ils businesses, and the
associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:
1) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company;
2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and

3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Company strives for continuat improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing emplayee training and development and other measures.

42.B Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and conirol 1o effectively manage risks asseciated with
the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a Global Risk
Comimittee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activilies at a central level,

Our risk mattagement policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able 1o withstand market volatifity and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. As a result, we follow conservative lending norms. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to menitor our client’s ercdit
exposure which is in addition to the monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses,

The Company's board of directors has overall vesponsihility for the cstablishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The
board bas established the Risk Managemeat Committee, which is vesponsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
The Committee holds regular meetings and report 1o board on its activities,

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and pracedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit commitice is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk minagement controls and procedures, the results of which are reported
to the audit committee,

42.C Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit control
processes, centratised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction
level as well as our risk manzgement processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly
monitared by the head of our business or operations. Our loan approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcement pracedures ire
designed 1o minimise delinquencies and maximise recoverics.

At afl levels of the Company's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions
have access to extensive, necessary and up—to-date information.

Itis the Company's policy that a monthly bricfing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant members of the Company in the utilisation of
market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developrents,

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees arc expected to take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and development emphasises that
cmployees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and responsibilities 10 menitor and keep their exposure
to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees’ annual ratings
and remuneration reviews,




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

42.D Types of Risks

The Compuny's risks are generally cutegorized in the following risk types:

Notes |Risks Arising [rom Measurement, menitoring and management of risk

42.D.1|Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a| Arises principatly from financing, |Measured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or

customer or counterparty fails to meet an dealing in Corporate Bonds, counterparty fails to make repayments;

Investments in Mutual Fund, Equity,

but also from certain other products
such as derivatives

| obligation under a contract,
Monitored using various internal risk management measures and
withia limits approved by individuals within a feamework of
delegated authorities; and

Managed through a robust risk control framework, which outlines

clear and consistent pelicies, principles and guidanee for risk
managers.

42.D.2fLiquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we do not|Liguidity risk arises from mismatches|Measured using a range of metrics, including Asset Liability
. . i iming of ex ws, mismatch, Debt Equity Rati

have sufficient financial resources to meet in the timing of cash flo ismatch, Bebt Equity Ratio

our obligations as they fall due or that we| Asises when iliquid asset positions [Regular monitoring of funding levels to ensure to meet the

can only do so at 4n excessive cost, cannot be funded at the elxpcc(cd requirement for Business and maturity of our liabilities.
terms and when required.

Maintain diverse sources of funding and liquid assets to Fucilitate

flexibility in meeting our liquidity requirements of the Company.

T
42.D.3|Market risk
] Market risk is the risk that movements in Exposure to market risk is sepagated |Measured using sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains and
into two portfolios: trading and non- |losses fora range of market movements and scenarios.

trading. . i . i
prices and Index prices, will reduce our Monritored using measures, including the sensitivity of net interest
income.

market factors,such as Interest rtes, equity)

income or the value of our portfolios.

Managed using risk limits approved by the risk maagement
commitice.
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{Currency : Indian rupees in miilion)

42,D.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's Trade receivables and Loans. Fhe Company has adopted a policy of deating with creditworthy cousterparties
and obtains sufficient coflateral, where appropriate, as u means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are 10 be
restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cuch customer. However, management zlso considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate,

The Company manages and controls eredit risk by sctting limits on the amount of risk it is willing 1o accept for individual counterparties/Groups
(Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by monitering exposures in relation 1o such limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based o its credit werthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence. Outstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored. The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the
risks to which it is exposed and 1ake corrective actions.

Derivative financial Instruments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instrumenns is, at any téme, limited to those with positive fair values, us recorded on the balance sheet, With
gross-settled derivatives, the Company is also exposed to a settlement risk, being the risk that the Company honours its obligation, but the counterparty
fuils to deliver the counter value,

Impairment Assesment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model far recognising impairment loss. The expected eredit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. ‘The Company has devised an internal medel
to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the Joans are classified into various
stages as follows:

Intern:al rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd Stage I
Standard grade 31 te 90 dpd Stage 11
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 111

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due ta an entity in accordance with the contract and al the cash flows that the
entity expects ta receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted ot the original EIR, Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is nat driven by any single
methadology, however methodotogy and approach used must reflect the following:

1} An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

2) Reasonable and supportuble information that is available without undue cost and effort at the teporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of fisture economic conditions;

3) Time value of money

While the time value of money clement is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR), the objective of developing 4 macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two requirements.
This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk eomponent in order to make it forward loaking and probability-weighted,

Significant increase in credit risk {SICR)

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified us Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL culculations, in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due. Classification of assets form stage | to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion, Accounts which are more than
30 duys past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as
Stage 2 assets, When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in Ireaking the customer as defaulted and
therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

42.D.1 Credil Risk (continued)

Probability of Defauli

Probability of default (PD) is an cstimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, Company calculates the 12 month PR by taking into
account the historical trends of the Loans/portfolic and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase in credit risk /
credit impaired assets, lifetime PIY has been applicd.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

The LGD represents expected Josses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the miligating effect of
collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the lime value of money. Since the Company is into the business of lending against
securities, haircut of 25% is applied on the value of the colieteral, based on basel hairut values for corporale securities, The exposure amount that is
over and above the collateral (with haircut) is considered as the effective exposure, The LGD of 65% is used for the unsecured exposure the portfolio
carries,

Exposure at Default (EAD
The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn eredit line
reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of the nature where

the Company provides fulure commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and off bakunce sheet values,

Risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are enguged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
simikar economic features that would cause their ubility to meet contractuni obligations (o be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
«ther conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance lo developments affecting a particular industry or
geographical focation,

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a
diversified portfofio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balunce sheet

As at Mayrch 31, 2020

Particulars Central & State annr.lciai Retail loans Service Others Total
Government Services Sector
Financial Assels
Cash and cash equivalents - £,587.54 - - - 1,587.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash - 345 - - - 345
equivalents
Derivative financial instruments . 17.84 - - - 17.84
Securities held for trading - 31.00 - - - 31.006
Trade receivables - 11.90 - - - 1.9
Other receivables “ 13.73 - - - 13,73
Loans - 3,262.64 3,130.26 - - 6,392,90
Other financial assets - 133.90 - ' - - 133.90
Total Assets - 5,062.00 3,130,26 - - 8,192.26
As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Central & State me.tcml Retail toans Service Others Total
Government Services Sector
Financinl Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,050.24 - - - 1,050,24
Bank balances other than cash and cash - 53.33 - - - 53.33
equivalents
Deerivative financial instruments - 1.01 - - - 1.01
Securities held for trading 13,679,23 125.30 - - - 13,804.53
Trade receivables . 6,283.79 - - - 6,283.79
Other receivables - 0.77 - 0.07 - 0.84
Other financial assets - 443,65 - - £O7 444,72

Kotal Assets 13,679.23 7,958.09 . 0,07 167  21,638.46
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42, Risk Management (continued)

42.D.1 Credit Risk (continued) .

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collaterat required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the
acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral. The main types of collateral obtained are pledge over martetable securities such as equity
shares, mutual fund units, bonds, AIF units etc. Management moniters the market value of collateral and will reguest additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement,

The tables below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details on collaterals held against exposure,

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Asat Asat Principal type of collateral
March 31, 2020 March 3, 2019 PP
Financial Assets
Cash and cash cguivalents 1,587.54 1,050.24
Bank balances other than cush and cash equivalents 345 53.33
Derivative financial insteuments 17.84 1.01

The Company invest in highly liguid
Centra¥/State Government securities,
high rated Corporate Bonds &
marketable securities.

Securities held for trading 31.60 13,804.53

Trade receivables 11.90 6,283.79 These arc receivables mainly from
Clearing houses and related pasty,
carrying minimusn risk.

Other receivables 13.73 0.84
Loans
Corporate credit 3,262.64 - Receivable from rebated party.
. " Equity shares, muteal fund units,
Retail Credit 3,130.26 Bonds, AIF unis.
Other financial assets 133.90 444.72

Tolal 8,192.26 21,638.46
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42, Risk Management (continued)
42.D.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting obligations associnted with financial liabilitics that arc sctited by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress cireumstances.

The Company ensures sufficient Liguidity Cushion is maintained in the form of Cash and cash equivaients and Investments in liquid sccuritics, These assets
carry minimat credit risk and can be liguidated in a very short period of time. This takes care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour our
commilments as a going cocern. The Company continues to focus on developing a diversified funding model to achieve an optimum cost of funds while
balanecing liquidity.

Liquidity Cushion:

As ut As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Liquidity cushion
Cash and cash equivalents 1,587.54 1,050.24
Lending {(Repo) - 3,900.00
Debt securitics 021 125.30
Other quoted investments 30.79 -
Total Liquidity cushion 1,618.54 5,075.54

Financing Arrangment

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilitics at the end of the rcporting year

Asat Asat
Munrch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Committed Lines from Banks - 50.00

Analysis of financial assets and liabilitics by maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and Jiabilitics as at 3] March. All
derivatives used for hedging and natueal hedges are shown by maturity, based on their contractua undiscounted payment obligations. Gross settled, non.
trading derivatives arc shown separately, by contractual maturity at the foat of the note.

Repayments which are subject to natice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expeets that many customers will not
request repayment on the carliest date it could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by its deposit retention
history.
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42, Risk Management {(continued)

42.D.2  Liquidity risk (continued)

As at March 31, 2020 - Analysis of contractual maturitics of finsneial assets and liabilitics

6MonthstoI 1yearto3 More than3

OnDemand  Upto 3 Months 3 to 6 Months Total
year yeurs years

Financial Asscis
{a) Cash and cash cquivalents 1,587.54 - - - - - 1,587.54
(b} Bank balances other than cash and cash 345 - - - - - 3.45
equivalents
{c) Derivalive financial instmaments - - - - 17.84 - 17.84
(d) Sccurities held for trading - 3100 - - - - 31.00
(c) Receivables

(i) Trade reccivables - 11.90 - - - - 1L.90

{ii) Othcr reccivables - 13.73 - - - - i3.73
() Loans 3,275.74 127.02 87.17 3,105.26 - - 6,685,19
() Other firancial asscts - 11.87 1.03 121.00 - - 133.90
Total undiscounted finuncial assets 4,866.73 195.52 88.20 3,316.26 17.84 - 8,484.55
Financiul Liabilitics
(a) Derivative financial instruments - “ - “ - 500 570
(b) Trade payahles - 62.01 - - - - 62,01
(¢} Debt sceurities - 2222 17.47 524.26 1.832.49 L119.60 4,516.04
1d) Borrowings {other than debit securities) 2928 - - - - - 29.28
{c) Subardinated Liabilitics - 194 85 - - 28.43 164.24 387.53
() Other financial liabilities - 1.22 - . - - 21.22
Total undiscounted financial liabilitics 29.28 300.31 17.47 524,26 1,360.92 2,289.54 5,021.78
Total net financial assets / (liabilities} 4,837,45 (104,79 70,73 2,792.00  (1,843.08) (2,289.54) 346277

In the shove table, cash flows have been considered basis contracual maturitics of respective assets and liabilities. As at March 31, 2020, the Company has
Eiven short term Joans, with a maturity of less than 12 months. However, Bebt securitics and Subordinated tiabilitics outstanding as at March 31, 2620 have
a maturity of more than 12 months. The Surplus funds so available on repayments of aforementioncd loans granted, shall be uscd o create further loan
book.

As at March 31, 2019 - Analysis of contractun! maturities of financial assets and linbilities

On Demund  Upto 3 Menths 3 to 6 Months 6 Monthste1 Tyearto3 More than 3 Total

year years yoars

Finzncial Asscts
() Cash and cash equivalents 1,050.24 - - - - - 1,050.24
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash 53.33 - - - - - 53.33
cquivalents
{c) Derivative financial instruments - 1.01 - - - - 1.61
(d} Sceurtties held for trading - 13,804,53 - - - - 13,804.53
{¢) Receivables

(i) Trade receivables - 6,283.79 - - - - 6,283.79

(i} Other reccivables - 0.84 B - - - 0.84
{f) Other financial asseis 131.97 31275 - - - - 444.72
Total undiscounted financial asscts 1,235.54 20,402.92 - - - - 21,638.46
Financial Liabilities
{a) Derivative financial instruments - 260.35 - - - - 260.35
(b} Trade payables - 49.40 - - - - 49.40
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securitics) 5,052.27 14,162.90 - - - - 1921517
(d) Subordinated Liabilitics - 45.89 - - 9179 576,32 714.00
() Other financial liabilities - 32.56 - - - - 3256
Tolat undiscounted financinal Habilitics 5,052,27 14,551.10 - - 91,79 576.32  20,271.48

(3,816.73) 5,851.82 - - -91.19 {576.32) 1,366.98
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Notes to finnncial statements {continned)

(Currency 1 Indian rupees in million)

42, Risk Management (Continued)

42,E.1  Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of foss from fluctuations in the future cash Flows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps
and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands,

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits, ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and fixed
rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day managerment of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows ar the fair values of financial instruments.
The Board has established limits on the non-trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company's policy is to monitor paositions on a
daily basis and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the
Company's statement of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in
interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non—trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2020
and at March 31, 2019,

42.E.2  Interest rate sensitivity

The Company does not have floating rate borrowing and CBLO borrowings. Accordingly the Company's profitability will not be affected due to
interest rate changes except for the Interest rate future agreements entered in by the Company,

As at March 31, 2020
Increase in - Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Decrease in Sensitivity of ~ Sensitivity
basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Borrowings from related parties 25 (0.07) - 25 0.07 -
Floating rate loans - 25 8.19 - 25 (8.19)
Corporate debl securities 25 (0.00) - 25 0.00 -
Other traded securities 25 ((108) - 25 0.08 -
As at March 31, 2019
Increase in  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of ~ Sensitivity
basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Borrowings from related partics 25 (12.63) - 25 12.63 -
Borrowings (Repo) 25 (35.41) - 25 35.41 -
Government securities 25 (34.20) - 25 34.20 -
Corporate debt securitics 25 (0.31) - 25 .31 -
Interest rate swaps 25 64.38 - 25 {64.38) -

42.E3  Price Risk

The Company does not have investment in quoated equity shares or mutual fund units of equity oriented funds, Accordingly there is no effect on
the Company's profitability or equity,

As at March 31, 2020
Increasein  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity
basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Berivative instraments
Embedded derivative 25 0.03 - 25 (0.03) -
As at March 31, 2019
Increase in  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity
basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Berivative instruments
Interest rate futures 25 (52.48) - 25 52.48 -

42.E.4 Prepeyment Risk
Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its counterparties request repayment carlier or later than expected,
such as fixed rate borrowings i the falling interest rate scenario.
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43, Regulatery disclosures - RBI
The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Fisancinl Company + Systcmically

Impariant Nen-Deposit laking Company and Deposit 1aking Company (Reserve Bank) Diceclions, 2016 issued vide Master Direclion DNER.
PD. 008/03,10.119/2016-17 dated September 0F,2016 as amended,

4301 Investments

Asal Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[} Value of Invesiments (including sscurities held for trading)
i) Gross Value of Investments
a) I India 109 13,804.53
b} Qutside India - -

ii} Provisions for Depreciation
a) In India - -
) Outside India - -

iii) MNet Value of Investments

2) In India .o 13,804,533
by Outside India - .

2} Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments,
i} Opening talance - -

i#) Add : Pravisions made during the year - .
iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisicns during the year - -
iv} Closing balance - R

43.02 Derivatives
A} Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
i) The notional principz] of swap agreements - 25,750.00
iy Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to Iulfill their obligations under (he - 4]
iii) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering inlo swaps - .
iv) Concenlration of credil risk arising from the swaps@ 0% EO0%
¥) The fair value of the swap book - {259.34)

@ % of concentration of credil risk arising from swaps with banks.

B) Exchanpe Fraded Interest Rate (IR) Decivatives

Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives underiaken during the year - 6417820
ity National principal 2mount of exchange raded IR derivalives oulstanding - 1,070.00
iii) Notional principal amount of exchange (raded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly - -
iv} Mark-lo-markel value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and nol “highly - -
effective”

C) Qualitative disclosure for Derlvatives

The Company undertakes transactions in derivative producis in the rele of a user with counter parties. The Company deals in the derivatives
for balance sheet nanagement ie. for hedging fixed rate, fleating rate and for hedging the variable interest in case of benchmark Enked
debentures. All derivalives are marked to market on reporting dates and the resulting paindloss is recorded in the stalement ol profit and loss,

Dealing in derivalives is carried oul by specified groups of the treasury deparsment of the Company based on the purpase of the transaction,
Derivative (ransactions are entered into by the treasury front office. Mid office leam conducts an independent check of the transactions
entered into by the front office and alse undertakes activities such as confinmation, seltlement, risk moniloring and reporting,

The Company has a credit and markel risk department that assesses counlerparty risk and market cisk limits, within the risk archilecture and
processes of the Company. Fhe Company has in place a policy which covers various aspects that apply to (he lunctioning of the derivative
business. Limits are monitored on a daily basis by the mid-office.

D} Quantitative Disclosures

As at March 31, 2020 As al March 31, 2019
S.no. Particulars Currency Inferest Rate Currency interest Rate
. Derivatives Derivatives Derivalives Derivatives

i} Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount}

For hedping - - - 2682000
iy Marked 10 Markel Positions

a) Assets (+) - - - 1.01

by Liability (-} - - - (260,35}
iy Credit Exposure - - - 247.50
iv)  Unhedped Exposures - - - -
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43,03 Capital to Risk Assels Ratio (CRAR)

i
HiR
iv.
V.

Particulars

CRAR (%)

CRAR - Tier | Capilat (%)

CRAR -Tier Il Capital (%)

Amount of subordinated debi raised as Tier-II capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpelual Debt Instruments

Asat
March 31, 2020

56.06%
47.18%
8.88%

Asat
Muarch 31, 2009,

29.04%
22.40%
6.64%

43.04  Details of Single Borrower Limit and Borrower Group Limit exceeded by the Company:

Buring the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Compzny credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were
within the limits prescribed by RBI except in one case in year ended March 31, 2020 where credit exposure lo one borrower which exceeded
the single borrower limil by Rs 47.41 Mitlion, The same was regularised immediately upon identification.

4305 Expesure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect;

43.06

Direct exposare

Residentini Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented; (Individual housing loans up to Rs.tS lakh may be shown
separalely)

Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by morigages on commercial reat estates (office buildings, retail space,
multipurpose comemercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-lenanted
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limils:

Investments in Mongage Backed Securilies (MBS) and other securitised EXPOSULES
Residential
Commercial Real Estate

Indireet Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on Nationa] Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs)

Others (Not covered Above)*

Total Exposure

Asat
Muarch 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Exposure to Capital Market

(i)

(i)

(iii)

{iv)

(v}

(vi}

(i)

direct investment in cquity shares, convenible bonds, convertible debentures and unils of
equity-oriented invested in corporate debt;

advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securitics or on clean basis 1o
individuals for invesiment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bands,
¢onvertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mulual funds:

advances for any othier purposes where shares or convertible honds or convertible
debentures or units of equily oriented mutital funds are taken as primary securily;

advances for any olher purposes o the extenl secured by the collateral securily of shares or
converlible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds j.e.
where the primary security ather than shares / converlible bonds / convertible debentures
wnits of equily oriented mutual funds ‘does nol fully cover the advances;

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and puarantees issued on beball of
stockbrokers and markel makers;

lnzns sanctioned 1o corporales zgainst 1he securily of shages 7 bonds / debentures or other
securilies or on clean basis for meeting promaler's conlribution to the equily of new
companies in apticipation of raising resources:

{vil) bridge loans to companics against expected equity flows / issues;

(viii) all exposures lo Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered}

Others - Nat covered above

Total exposure

Asat
March 31, 2020

3,142.83

2,703.31

5,846.14

Asat
March 31, 2019




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)
43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)
43.07 Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain assets and labilities as at March 31, 2020
Liabilities Assets

Parti ities h
articulars Deposit Borrowings Advances SECUI'IHES‘ cld Investments
for trading

I day to 30/31 days -

{one month} 234,68 3.302.33 - -
Over one month to -

2 months - - - -
Over 2 months to -

3 months - - - -
Over 3 months to -

6 monthg - - - -
Gver 6 months to 1 year - 386.97 3,090.57 - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - 1.449.16 - - -
Over 3 years to 5 years - 1,046.84 - - -
Over 5 years - 533.91 - - -
Total - 3,651.56 6,392.90 - -

Maturity pattern of certain assets and Habilities as at March 31,2019

Liabilities Assets
Particulars Deposit Borrowings Advances Secuntles‘held Investments
for trading
1 day to 30/31 days - 19,215.17 - 13,804.53 -
Over one month to -
2 months 45.89 - - -
Over 2 months to -
3 months - - - -
Over 3 months to -
6 months . . - -
Over 6 months to 1 year - - - - -
Over 1 year to 3 years - - - - “
Over 3 years to 5 years - - - - -
Over 5 years - 470.70 - - -
Total - 19,731.76 - 13,504.53 -

The asset liability mismatch for the short term as at March 31, 2019 are primarily on account of the trade date accounting followed
by the Company for recording the purchase and sale transactions of Bovernment securities whereby the sale proceeds aggregating to
Rs. 6,283.79 million are reflected as trade receivables as a¢ March 31, 2019,

Further, the Company had temporarily deployed its excess liguidity aggregating to Rs. 3,900.00 million as at March 31, 2019 in the
Repo Lending. Accordingly, the Company is well poised to meet its contractual obligations over afl the maturity due dates.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Noetes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)
43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.08 Movements in Non Performing Advances:

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross non-performing assets(NPAs),
net NPAs and provisions:

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
iMovement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening Balance - -
b) Additions during the year - -
c) Reducticns during the year - -
d) Closing balance - -

iiYMovement of Net NPAs

a) Opening Balance - -

b) Additions during the year - -
¢) Reductions during the year - -
d) Closing balance - -

iii)Movement of Provisions for NPAs
(excluding provision on Standard assets)

a} Opening Balance - -
b) Additions during the year - -
c) Reductions during the year . -
d) Closing balance . -




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)
43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.09 Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and
i3

Loss.

Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
(i} Provisions for depreciation on investment - -
(ii) Provision towards NPA - -
(iif) Provision made towards income tax (net of deferred tax) 79.37 32.59
(iv) Provision for stage 1/ stage 2 assets 25.67 -
(v) Other Provision ard Contingencies (Provision for doubtful debts) - .

43.10 Concentration of Depuosits, Advances, Exposures and NFAs
As at Asat

March 31,2620 March 31, 2019
A) Coneentration of Advances

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 4,901.90 -
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 76.37% 0.00%

B) Concentration of Exposures

Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers 4,901.98 -
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to 76.37% 0.00%

C) Concentration of NPAs

Total exposures to top four NPAs - -

D) Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that sector

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Agriculture & allied activities - -
MSME - -
Corporate borrowers - -
Services - .
Unsecured personal loans - -
Auto loans - "
Other personal loans - -

Sectors

~ OB —

43,11 Customer Complaints

As at Asal
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

(@) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
(b)  No. of complaints received during the year - -
{c) No. of complaints redressed during the year - -
{d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year - -

43.12 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)-Nil

43.13 The Company has not restructured any loans and advances during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31,
2019,




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

43, Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.14 Notes lo the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Non-Banking
Financial (Non-Deposit Aceepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,

Liabilities side ;

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue Quislanding Overdue

(1) Loans and Advances availed by the
NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid:

(a) Debenturcs
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits $)

i) Secured 3,281.73 - - -

ity Unsecured - - - N

{b} Deferred Credits - - - -

{¢) Term Loans - - - .

(d) Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowing 29.28 - 505227 -

(e} Commercial Paper - - - -
(N Other Loans:

Borrowings {Repo) - - 14,162.90 -

Preference Share Capital 340,55 - 516.59 -

($ Please see Note | below)

Assets side :

Amount Qutstanding
Asat As

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills reccivables

fother than these included in (4) below]:

(a) Secured 2,881.58 -
(b) Unsecured 3,536.99

(3) Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and hypothecation loans counting

towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
{a) Financial Lease -
(b) Operating Lease -

(it) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assels on Hire -
(b) Repossessed Assels -

(iii) Hypothecation loans counting lowards EL 7 HP activities :
() Loans where asscts have been repossessed -
(b} Loans other than {a) above .

(4) Break-up of
Current Investments:(including securities held for trading)

1. Quated :
(i} Shares : (a) Equity N
(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and Bonds .21 125.30
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds 30.79 -
(iv) Government Securities - 13,679.23
(v) Others " -
—
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Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Miilion)

43.14 Notes 1o the Balance Sheet of a non-deposil 1aking non-banking financial comparny (a5 required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Non-Banking
Financtal (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudentiat Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. {Continued)

(4) Break-up of Investments (Continued)

2, Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Bquity

{b) Prelerence
(ii) Debenwres and Bonds
(iii} Units ol Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Debt instruments)

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equily
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others

2. Unguoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

{a) Warranis

(b) Units of Fund

(c) Invesiment in Security Receipts

(d) Share Application Money

Amount Qutstanding

Asal
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019,

(8) Borrower group-wisc classification of ali assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

1. Related Parties**
() Subsidiaries
{b) Companies in the same group
{c) Other related padies

2. Other than related parties

Tatal

As at March 31, 2020
Category Amount (net of provisions)
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties™*
(a) Subsidiaries - - N
(b) Other related parties . 3,262.64 3,262.64
2. Other than related parties 2,870.05 260.21 3,130.26
As at 3] March 2019
Category Amount (net of provisions)
Secured Unsecured Total




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the firancial statements (Continuecd)

(Caurrency: Indian Rupees in Million)
43.14 Notes to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Non-Banking
Financial (Non-Deposit Accepling or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Continued)

(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and sceurities (both quoted and unquoted)

Market value / Break-up or
Eair value or NAV

Category Book value (net of provisions)

(i) Gross Non-Peeforming Assets
{(a) Related Party
(b) Other than Related Parties
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Party
(b) Orher than Related Parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satislaction of debts

31 March 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1. Related parties®*
{a) Subsidizries - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group 0.2t 2.62 0.21 2.62
(c} Other related parties - - -
2, Other than related parties 30.79 13,801.9¢ 30,79 13.801.91
Total 31.00 13,804.53 3100 13,804.53
** As per Ind AS-24 Related Party Disclosures
(77 Other information
Particulars Asat As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Notes:
1 As defined in paragraph 2(D)(xiD) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 1998

2 Markel value/Breakup Value or Fair Value or NAY is taken as same as book value in case if unquoted shares in absence of markel vale /

breakup value or fair value or NAY.

43.15 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year ended March 31, 2020

Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
(i) Long Term Instruments
Rating AA-/slable AA-Incgative AA-Istable AAfnegative
Amount 16,150 16,350 12,000.00 5.000
(iiy Short Term Instruments
Rating Al+ - Al+ -
Amount 40,000 - 35,000 -
(iii) Market linked debentures
a. Short Term
Rating PP- MLD Al+r PP-MLD At+ . -
Amount 713 4,000 - -
b. Long Term
PP-MLD PP-MLD AA- PP-MLD PP-MLD
Raling AA-ristable /MNegative AA-/stable AAMmegative
Amount 5.000 7,000 5.4000 5,000
Ratings assigned by credit rating ag and migration of ratings during the year ended March 31,2019
Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
(i) Long Term Instruments
Rating AA/Stable AA/Stable - AA+/SLable)
Amount [1,150 16,350 - 500
(ii) Short Term Instruments
Rating Al+ Al+ Al+ -
Amount 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
(iii} Market linked debentares
i Short Term
Rating
PPMLD Al4r PPMLD Al+ - -
Amount 715 4,000 - -
b. Long Term
Rating - PP MLD AA/Stble - B
Amount - 7.000 - -




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Million)

43. Regulatory disclosures - RBI (continued)

43.16 DPetails of transaction with non executive directors

Sr.  Name of the Non executive Nature of Transaction For the year ended For the year ended

director ! March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
1 P.N. Venkatachalam Sitting Fees 0.26 0.32
2 Vined Juneja Sitting Fees - 0.14

43.17 The Company has no disclosure in respect of securitisation as there are no financial assets sold to securitisation /
reconstruction company

43.18 Unsecured Advances
Total amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. has been taken as
also the estimated value of such intangible collateral - Nil

43,19 Impact of prior period items on current year’s profit and loss: Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.20 Circumstances in which Revenue Recognition has been postponed: Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.21 Draw Down from Reserves: Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.22 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-hanking financial company as required in terms of Chapter II paragraph 5 of
Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.23 Details of financing of parent company products - None (Previous vear - none)
43.24 Off-Balance SPV sponsored - None (Previous year - none) i
43.25 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil)

43.26 Disclosure of Penaities imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil (Previous year Nil}




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Nodtes 1o the financial stalements (Continued)
(Currency: Tndian Rupees in million)

43,27 Prudential Fleor for ECL

As required in terms of paragraph 2 of cireular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards

As at March 31, 2020
Gross corrying Loss nltowances Provisions Difference between
Asset classification as per RBI  Asset elassification ying (provisions) as Net corrying N IND AS 109
. amount as per . required ns per -
norms as per IND AS 109 IND AS required under amouni IRACP norms provisiens and
IND AS 109 TRACP norms
A B C D E=C-D F G=D-F
Performing assets
Stage 1 6,271.19 25.08 6,246.11 25.08 -
Standard Stage 2 147.38 0.59 146,79 0,59 -
Subtotal (i) 6,418.57 25.67 6,392.90 25,67 -
Non performing asstes (NPA)
Substandard Stape 3 - - - - -
Doubitful Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Slage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal (ii) - - - - -
Slage 1 62711y 25.08 6,246.11 25.08 -
Total Stage 2 147.38 .59 146.79 0.5% -
Stage 3 . - - - .
Total 6,418.57 25,67 £,392,90 25.67 =
As at March 31, 2019

There were no loans oulstanding as at Marck 31, 2019, Hence, comparalive information is not disclosed




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in million)

43,28 Disclosure on liquidity risk

i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and horrowings)

As at As at

March 31, 2620 March 31, 2019

Number of significunt counterparties* 11 3
Amount of borrowings from significant counzerpartics 899.80 19,20%.12
% of Total deposits NA NA
% of Total liabilities 23.70% 93.18%

* “Significant counterparty™ is defined as a single counterparty oz group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate
for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total labilitics.

i) Top 20 Inrge deposits

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of
Indix, does not accept public deposits.

iii} Top 10 borrowings
As at As af
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Amount of Borrowings from top 10 lenders* 899.80 19,284.42
% of Total Borrowings ** 24,64% 97.73%

* Represents principuf amount
** Total borrowings represents debt securities + borrowings (other than debt securitics) + swbordinated labilities

iii} Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
% of Total % of Tolal
WName of the product Amount Liabilities Amount Liahilities
\ Debeniores

Moarket linked debentures 1,145.26 30.16% - 0.00%

Public issue 2,136.47 56.27% - 0.00%
Borrowings other than Debt Securities

Loan from related prarties 29.28 0.77% . 505227 25.03%

Borrowings (Repo) - - 14,162.90 T0.18%
Subordinated Liabilities

Preference Shares - privately placed 340.55 8.97% 516.59 2.56%
Total 3,651.56 96,17 % 19,731.76 97.71%

iv) Stock ratios: As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Commercial papers

as a % of total public funds NA NA
as a % of total labilites NA NA
as & % of total assets NA NA

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of
iess than one year)

as a % of total public funds NA NA
as a %6 of total lizbilities NA NA
as a % of tetul assets NA NA

Other short-term liabilities

a5 a % of total public funds 19.20% 99.836%
as & 9 of total fiabilities 18.46% 97.60%
us 1 % of total assets 8.33% 89.8%%

FarHBIN
Qoo "\\4_'\'0:\




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to the linancial slatements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in million)

43.28 Disclosure on liquidity risk

iv) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
The Board of Dircctors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Commitice and the Risk Management Committee,

The Asset Linbility Management Commiltee, inter alia -
() Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Boazd and its revision, if any

(b) Moniter the asset liability gap und overcome the asset-liability mismatches, inlerest risk exposure, ete.; Strasepize action 1o mitigate risk associated
with the assct fiability gup;

(c) Develap risk policics and precedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the risk monizoring system and
ensure effective risk management; and

{d) Ensure that the ¢redit and investment exposure to any party / Campany / group of parties ar companics does not exceed the internally sct limits as
well as statatery limits 2s prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time o time.

The Company ensures sufficient Liguidity Cushion is maintained in the form of Cash and cash cquivalents und Invesiments in liguid scourities. These
assets carry einimal eredit isk and can be liguidated in a very short period of time. This takes care of immediate abligations white conlinuing to
honour our commitments as % going concern. 'The Company continues to focus on developing a diversified funding model to schicve ans optimem cost
of funds while balancing Liquidity.




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees)
44. Other disclosures (continued)
44.01 Details of open interest for derivative instruments
44,01(a) Open interest in interc;t rate derivatives:
As at March 31, 2020 : Nil
As at March 31,2019

Benchmark Notional principal Terms Purpose
MIBOR 25,750 Pay fixed Vs. receive floating ~ Hedging

44.01(b) Open interest rate futures as at March 31, 2020 with exchange

Long Position Short Position
Number of Number of Number of Number of
contracts units contracts units

< 1 month - - - -
1-2 months - - - -
2-3 months - - - -
3-6 months - - - -
6-12 months - - - -

Maturity
grouping

Open interest rate futures as at March 31, 2019 with exchange

Maturity Long Position Short Position
grouping Number of Number of Number of Number of
contracts units contracts units
< 1 month 1,900.00 3,800,000 7,250 14,500,000
1.2 months - - - -
2-3 months - - - -
3-6 months - - - -
6-12 months - - - .

44.02 Foreign currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2020 (Previous year: Rs
Nil).

44.03 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2020.

44.04 The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material
foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law/
accounting standards for material foresceable losses on such long term contracts {including derivative contracts) has been made in
the books of accounts,




Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
Nofes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in milfion)
45. Pursuant to the income [ax assessment orders received, provision for tax recorded in the books of accounts and related income tax returns filed
for respective years, the Company has assessed 2n additionai tax expense of Rs 114.85 million, Since these tax expense pertains to earlier years,

the Company has recognised the impact of these tax expense in its retained earnings / statement of Profit and Loss, s a5 to provide refiable and
more relevant information about the Company's financial position and its performance.

Accordingly, as per para: 42 of Ind-AS 8, the company has changed the respective year finaneial statements to give effect to above adjustments,
the impact of such adjustiment on the financial position and financial performance is given below,

As at April 01, 2018

Reported amount Increase/(decrease) Revised amount
Other equity 1,854.67 (131.58) 1723.09
Current tax assets (net) 437.77 (131.58) 306.19
For the year ended and As at March 31, 2019

Reperted amount Increase/(decrease) Revised amount
Balance Sheet
Other equity 1,813.36 (114.85) 1,698.51
Current tax assets (net) 260.47 (114.85) 145.62
Statement of Profif and Loss
Cuirent tax 86.11 (16.73) 69,38
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) (in Rs,)
Busic {1.06) 4,87 3.81
Diluted (1.06) 4.87 3.81

46. The Company has implemented Ind AS 116 "Leases” as on April I, 2019, This does not have any significant impact on financial statement for
the year ended March 31, 2020.

47. Purseant to the introduction of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, in FY 2019-20, the Company has opted for the reduced tax rate

48. The Covid-19 pandemic outbreak across the world including India has resulted in most countries announcing lockdowns and quaranting

Indian economy would be impacted by this pandemic and the resultant lockdown, due to the contraction in industrial and services output across
small and large businesses. The impact of the COVID -19 pandemic on the Company’s results, including credit quality and provisions, remaing
unceriain and dependent on the current and further spread of COVID -19, steps taken by the government and the RBI to mitigate the econoniic
impact ard also the time i takes for economic activities to resume and reach the normal levels,

on May 22, 2020 for the payment of all instalments falling due between March [, 2020 and August 31, 2020 1o all eligible borrowers that have
opted to avail the same, In Tespect of accounts, where moratorium benefit has been granted, the staging for the accounts is based on staging
existing as at February 29, 2020. As per the assessment done by the Company, this staging standstill has not been on its own considered to be
triggering any substantial increase in credit risk. Based on the assessment of the Company, in the absence of other credit risk indicators, the
granting of the moratorium does not itself result in accounts becoming past due and triggering Stage 2 and Stage 3 classification criteria,

‘The Company has assessed the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its liquidity and ability to repay its obligations as and when they fall due.
Based on the management assessment of liquidity position of the Company, management believes that the Company will be able (o pay its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable futnre, The Company would continue 10 focus on maintaining adequate capital and
ensuring liquidity at all points in tme during corrent period and for the period going forward.

In assessing the recoverability of loans and receivables, intangible assels, deferred tax assets and investments, the Company has considered
internal and external sources of information, including credit Feports, economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these
ial results. Since the situation is rapidly evolving, its effect on the operations of the Company may be different from that estimated as at
f approval of these financial results, The Company will continye to ciosely monitor materiai changes in- tnarkets and future economic
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Notes to the financial statements (Continuved)

{Carrency: Indian Rupees in miilion}

49, Previous year figures has been restated/regrouped wherever necessary,

As per gur report of even date attached.

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and en behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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